
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the Covid 
19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities can 
conduct business during this current public health emergency. 
 
This meeting of Audit Committee will be held remotely under 
these regulations, via the Zoom application and will be 
webcast to ensure accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
17 September 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Monday 28 September 2020 at 7.30 pm on 
zoom. 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2020 
(previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 12  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda. 

Public Document Pack



 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 5 - 26) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance), 
which brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of 
Service. These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in August 2020 
and reflect the assessments in place for the quarter July to September 2020. 
 

8.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 27 - 38) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service which provides an update on the 
progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan for 2020-21 as at 11 September 2020. 
 

9.   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 (Pages 39 - 
84) 
 

 Report of Ernst & Young LLP providing a summary of the findings from the 
2019/20 audit of the Council. 
 

10.   INDEPENDENT REVIEW INTO THE OVERSIGHT OF LOCAL AUDIT AND THE 
TRANSPARENCY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY FINANCIAL REPORTING 
("REDMOND REVIEW") (Pages 85 - 92) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
to make the committee aware of the government commissioned independent 
review of local authority audit and potential implications for the council. 
 

11.   REVIEW OF CORPORATE ANT-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY AND 
ASSOCIATED POLICIES (Pages 93 - 134) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
to seek comment from the committee on the proposed anti-fraud and corruption 
policies. 
 

12.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

13.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act as amended. 
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 



PART II 
 

14.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman) 

S.Markiewicz (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
J.Boulton 
 

L.Chesterman 
F.Marsh 
J.Skoczylas 
 

    
 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Service on 01707357413 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Item No: 7 
Main author: Andy Cremer 
Executive Member: Councillor Fiona Thomson 

       
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 SEPTEMBER  2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service.  
These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in August 2020 and reflect the 
assessments in place for the quarter July to September 2020.   

2 Recommendation 
 

2.1 Members  are asked to: 

 Note the attached current Strategic Risk Register and top operational risks, and 
particularly: 

 Note comments in respect of each risk where shown. 

 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Appendix A shows the strategic risk register.  Each strategic risk has ownership by a 
Corporate Director and an Executive Member.  Appendix B shows the top operational 
risks scoring greater than 50.  The risk scoring table is as follows and shows the new 
impact2 x likelihood methodology: 

 

 

 

 

Likelihood 

Imp
act 
 

25 

16 

9 

4 

1 

50 

32 

18 

8 

2 

75 

48 

27 

12 

3 

100 

64 

36 

16 

4 

125 

80 

45 

20 

5 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must ensure 
that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] includes 
effective arrangements for the management of risk.” 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event may have 
its own financial consequences. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Failing to maintain adequate and effective arrangements for the management of risk may 
lead to risk events not being foreseen, an inadequate response to a risk event occurring 
and a failure to exploit opportunities. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 None. 

8 Procurement Implications 

8.1 None. 

9 Climate Change Implications 

9.1 None. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 None. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 None. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implications 

12.1 None. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report supports all council priorities in that the effective management of 
risk is essential to the achievement of objectives. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with the 
proposals that are set out in this report as it relates purely to monitoring information. 

Name of Author: Andy Cremer  
Title:  Risk and Resilience Manager 
Date: September 2020  
 

Page 6



 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register, Appendix B – Top Operational Risks  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Report
Appendix A - Strategic Risks

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Community Consultation and
Engagement Description: Failure to properly
consult customers in line with legislative and
regulatory requirements (as appropriate to
relevant service areas). Failure to involve
communities when planning services.
Consequences: Intervention by regulatory
bodies, Legal - challenge, Reputational
damage, Additional costs, Inadequate service
shaping

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Alliance Strategy

Borough Panel

Community Partnership Team engagement
events

Corporate Strategy - Tenant Involvement
Strategy (Housing)

New Corporate Community and Stakeholder
Engagement Strategy

Policy and Procedure Framework

Tenants’ Panel

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A new corporate Community and
Stakeholder Engagement Strategy is being
developed to ensure a thorough and
consistent approach to engaging with
partners, customers and wider community.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2020 16:44:49

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned
Housing Property Assets Description: Failure
to provide and maintain council housing
property assets and services. Taking
opportunities to invest in assets.
Consequences: Increased homelessness,
Community impact, Economic development,
Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries and ill health,
Intervention by regulatory bodies, Customer
dissatisfaction, Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Financial Implications

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Asbestos Management

Electrical safety

Fire Risk Assessment

H and S - Organisation And responsibilities

LGSR compliance

Planned works delivery I

Policy and Procedure Framework

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We continue with our robust
approach to stock condition surveying, to
ensure that the planned maintenance
programme is optimised, for the benefit of our
tenants and council's housing asset.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2020 16:46:33

P
age 9



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Safeguarding Description: Failure to
meet obligations in respect of children and
adults at risk from abuse. Consequences:
Undetected Abuse, Legal - Litigation,
Reputational damage, Risk to residents
wellbeing

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Mandatory safeguarding training programme

Reporting pathways communicated and
updated

Safeguarding Action Plan

Safeguarding Policies

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The council is in the process of the
annual audit for the HCC Adults Safeguarding
Board. There continues to be a number of
referrals from operational staff and this
demonstrates that people understand and can
access the safeguarding process at the
council.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2020 16:48:19

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Change Management Description:
A new oneteam culture and set of behaviours
have been rolled out across the council and
are now being embedded to support our
modernisation and improvement journey. This
risk addresses the consequences of any
failure to robustly manage change.
Consequences: Inadequate service shaping,
Additional costs, Reputational damage

Rob Bridge Appraisal and one to one process

Chief Executive Briefings

Close Working Relationship with HR

Communication

HR - Employee Forum

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Reporting to ROSC

LGA Membership

Peer Challenge

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We now have the report arising
from the Peer Challenge process and have
developed work streams arising from the
recommendations in this. Our modernisation
and transformation process continues, and
employee briefings have taken place. The
Chief Executive is moving forward with
developing the modernisation and
transformation programme and relevant
resources to deliver it.

Comment Last Updated:
30/09/2019 15:58:53

P
age 10



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Staff/Workforce Description: Failure
to recruit or retain staff with key skills. Lack of
resources due to high levels of sickness,
turnover or industrial action. Failure to develop
and train existing staff. Breach of legislation or
failure to follow our HR policies.
Consequences: Legal - Litigation, HR - High
Staff Turnover, Low morale, Additional costs

Nick Long Appraisal and one to one process

Apprenticeship Scheme

Corporate Governance - Management
Assurance Statement

Departmental Training Plans

Flexible Working

Green Travel Plan

Health and Wellbeing Programme

HR - Agency Staff Policy

HR - Disciplinary and Grievance Policy

HR - Employee Forum

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Recruitment and Selection Process

HR - Reporting to ROSC

HR - Sickness Absence Policy

HR - Workforce Development Strategy

HR Policies (overall framework)

Training and Awareness of HR Staff

Current Score
48

Indicator
3

Probability

3
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Recruitment still remains a
challenge in a number of key areas, with
Heads of Service reporting challenges in
attracting an retaining staff particularly in
relation to specialist skilled and professional
staff. We are obviously monitoring the
significant potential impacts from the
pandemic. Following on from the peer review,
the action plan and direction of travel have
been agreed; we will at the appropriate time
continue the work on developing the corporate
workforce development strategy. In the current
pandemic climate we have reviewed and
adjusted all of our recruitment methods to
accomodate social distancing requirements.
We are also mindful of the need to understand
existing work force skills and the potential for
redeployment of staff in response to the
pandemic.

Comment Last Updated:
02/07/2020 08:42:13P

age 11



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Prevent Description: Not properly
implementing the government’s ‘Prevent’
agenda to address the risks of radicalisation.
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Undetected Abuse, Prevent Delayed referral to
Channel, Prevent - lack of staff awareness,
Poor partnership working

Nick Long Prevent - Channel

Prevent - Lease and Hire Agreements

Prevent - Nominated Lead Officer for Prevent

Prevent - Security and Terrorism implications
in report template

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Prevent - WRAP workshops

Prevent matters discussed at Safeguarding
meetings.

Representation at County Prevent Board

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Prevent sessions have not been
run face to face for a while due to covid 19 and
resourcing. However, new e-learning has
been developed by government and this will
be being rolled out soon. It will be
accompanied by further general counter
terrorism sessions produced by ACT (Action
Counters Terrorism), which will provide a more
rounded learning experience, as well as
improving accessibility.

Comment Last Updated:
02/07/2020 09:35:44

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Corporate Resilience Description:
Failure to meet the requirements of the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004, including the
material failure or inadequacy of plans
Failure to respond appropriately to a civil
emergency or business continuity incident,
including the duty of care to the community.
Consequences: Community impact,
Economic development, Unsafe assets,
Customer dissatisfaction, Reputational
damage, Poor partnership working,
Intervention by regulatory bodies

Nick Long Resilience - Business Continuity Management
Process

Resilience - Care of People Plan

Resilience - Crisis Support Team

Resilience - Extended Floodline

Resilience - Local Resilience Forum

Resilience - Resilient Telecommunications

Resilience - Training and Exercising

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Current Score
25

Indicator
3

Probability

1
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The council remains a key member
of the local resilience forum and the
CEX/Corporate Director are representing the
10 district and borough councils on the
strategic cooridinating group that has been set
up to respond to the current Covid-19
pandemic. Good links have enabled us to
work together to plan for such an emergency
and deal with such emergency situations.
Officers from across the council have been
brought in to support the emergency response
and recovery from the pandemic this is
needing to be balanced against business as
usual work and we also remain involved in
multi-agency planning for other risks,
including cyber-resilience.

Comment Last Updated:
02/07/2020 08:44:09

P
age 12



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Health and Safety Description:
Failure to maintain an adequate and effective
safety management system within the Council,
including structures, processes, control
measures and allocations of responsibilities
and ensuring competence of employees,
contractors and service providers.
Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill health,
Lost productivity, Sickness absence, Legal -
Litigation, Intervention by regulatory bodies,
Reputational damage

Nick Long H&S - Collective Responsibility of Executive
Board

H&S - Corporate Health and Safety Policy

H&S - Inspection and auditing

H&S - Map of the extent of the undertaking

H&S - Periodic Inspection of plant and
equipment.

H&S - Risk and Resilience Team

H&S - Risk Assessment Policy

H&S - Safety Director Role

H&S - Staff Induction and Training

Current Score
25

Indicator
3

Probability

1
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The new safety officer is now in
post and is working across the council to
assist in identifying and managing risks
including those relating to "covid-19 secure"
activities. The corporate health and safety
group has commenced a review of how it
works to support the CEX in making sure our
responsibilities as an employer are met. In the
current climate we have needed to revise our
programme of policy review and audits along
with our training programme. We continue to
respond to any particular issues which may
arise. Where necessary reviews have been
undertaken to identify corporate learning. We
continue to work with partners as necessary.

Comment Last Updated:
02/07/2020 08:48:08

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Local Plan Description: Risk that
Local Plan will be found unsound. Inspector
has asked Council to find at least 4,000 more
homes in plan period. Consequences:
Economic development, Financial - affects on
receipts, Economic - inward investment,
Economic - local infrastructure, Economic -
new facilities, Environment - hostile
developments, Economic - loss of funding,
Reputational damage

Nick Long Planning - Committees

Planning - Consultation

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Project Plan

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Current Score
100

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Virtual hearing sessions to exam
submitted village sites are scheduled for 28-
29-30 July, 4-5 Aug and 18-19-20 Aug.
Inspector will then draft interim report, which
will probably advise that plan is unsound as
submitted, and therefore put choice on cllrs
whether to select any additional sites. Officers
have commissioned updated OAN in light of
new household projections, which will also
attempt to take account of Brexit, coronavirus
and economic impacts. Gov has announced
fundamental reforms to planning system,
including more permitted development rights
that increases scope for more housing in town
centres and employment areas and
forthcoming white paper, but not yet known
what that will contain.

Comment Last Updated:
02/07/2020 12:20:35

P
age 13



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Finance Description: Plans for
meeting the growing budget gap are not
delivered on time to ensure continued
sufficient resources to pay for services.
Consequences: Finance - Depletion of
reserves, Reputational damage, Service
delivery - loss/reduction, Financial - affects on
receipts, Service delivery - can't met demand

Ka Ng Finance - Annual Governance Statement

Finance - budget challenge process

Finance - budget preparation process

Finance - budgetary control by managers

Finance - capital programme

Finance - external audit

Finance - Finance Procedure Rules

Finance - Financial Information System
(Agresso)

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Finance - internal audit

Finance - Medium Term Financial Plan

Finance - Treasury Management Policy

Finance - use and control of reserves and
balances

Property - Asset Management Plan

Current Score
75

Indicator
1

Probability

3
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a continuing challenge to
meet the medium targets, but we have a large
number of robust controls and processes in
place in order for us to meet the savings
requirements. The council had a favourable
financial outturn for 2019/20. The Government
announced a one year settlement for 2020/21,
which provided certainty in the short term, but
there continue to be a number of uncertainties
beyond this, as many of the government
funding streams are under review and the
Council looks to meet its challenging savings
targets. During quarter one, an update was
provided to Cabinet on the impact of
Coronavirus. There is an increased risk in
relation to the Councils financial sustainability
in light of this current pandemic. Financial
implications are being monitored on a daily
basis and additional cashflow monitoring and
forecasting has been put in place. The
position is changing on a frequent basis, and
the sector as a whole is lobbying Government
for additional financial support to ensure
councils budgets remain affordable and
sustainable. The score for this risk was
increased last quarter and will continue to be
closely monitored. Until further
announcements are made by the Government
around additional support that may be
provided, the score for this risk has been
maintained at the same level as previously
reported As we move into the summer period,
we will be looking to update our MTFS and
review the savings targets for future years.

Comment Last Updated:
30/06/2020 10:19:49

P
age 14



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Communications Description:
Failure to engage effectively with our
communities, communicate the council's
priorities, actively manage the council's
reputation and/or communicate effectively
across multiple platforms. Consequences:
Reputational damage, Loss of trust, Comms -
inability to manage message

Ka Ng Comms - communication plan

Comms - Communications Team

Comms - Corporate Communications Strategy

Comms - media monitoring

Comms - media trained staff and Members

Comms - surveys

LGA Peer Challenge

Social Media Policy

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: All of our communications have
been managed remotely since March 2020
due to Covid-19, which has meant new ways
of working for the corporate team and for many
of our services. Increased use of ONE Welwyn
Hatfield and social media has helped us to
ensure core messages and information gets
out into our local communities. Press and
media enquiries continue to come in, a weekly
edition of TeamTalk continues to be produced,
and support for major projects and initiatives
continues. Twice weekly updates to all Officers
and Members are also produced and issued
at this time.

Comment Last Updated:
15/07/2020 15:43:12

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - ICT Failure Description: Critical
failure of ICT services, for example due to virus
attack or ransomware virus attacks. These
target computers running Microsoft Windows.
Consequences: ICT - loss of service

Ka Ng ICT - database updates

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - ICT Strategy

ICT - infrastructure review

ICT - malware detection

ICT - PSN Compliance Testing

ICT - Temporary PSTN connection

Current Score
48

Indicator
3

Probability

3
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a continual battle against
attacks, but we have a large number of robust
controls, systems and processes in place in
order for us to be as protected as reasonably
possible, and risk is significantly reduced
because of this. Specific areas to note, in
relation to work undertaken during quarter 1:
The ICT and Infrastructure Working Group ToR
has been agreed and have met to agree a
work programme; Additional security advice
has continue to be commissioned throughout
the pandemic; Further enhancements were
made to MS Teams Security; The
recommendations from the Cabinet Office on
the use of Zoom were reviewed and
implemented. The COVID19 pandemic has
increased the need for new ways of working,
and increased remote working, and with this
comes increased risks. These risks are being
proactively reviewed and managed, with
management regularly discussing these
updates with the team. National advice is
being issued on certain applications, and this
advice is being followed. Additional
communications have been issued to raise
awareness of the increased risks in the
challenging environment.

Comment Last Updated:
30/06/2020 10:25:35

P
age 15



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Data Protection Description:
TheGeneral Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) replaced the previous Data Protection
Act from May 18. It contains onerous
obligations that had an immediate impact. As
we handle people’s data we are responsible
for keeping it safe. Consequences: Legal -
Litigation, Intervention by regulatory bodies,
Reputational damage, Legal - challenge,
Additional costs

Ka Ng Governance - Data Protection Policies

ICT - data encryption

Internal Auditing

Procurement considerations - Data Protection
in Contracts

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: GDPR remains a high priority for
the Council, and work continues to ensure the
Council remains GDPR compliant. However,
as GDPR has been in place now for over 2
years, project type work (such as production of
policies and procedures) has reduced, and
the focus is on improving and enhancing
awareness and procedures. Subject Access
Requests have been increasing, and this work
is being supported by a fixed term apprentice.
During quarter one, the following items are
specific areas of work to highlight: - Staff were
reminded on importance of data control in
current times; - Privacy Impact Assessments
were completed for use of new software such
as MS Teams; - The internal audit scope of
works were agreed and the audit commenced;
- Provided further guidance to staff on dealing
with subject access requests There are
additional demands which need responding
to quickly in order to adequately respond in a
timely way to COVID19. This includes
reviewing data sharing agreements, and
understanding the legal basis for data already
held by the Council to support the wider public
good and delivery of new support measures.
The DPO is being proactively consulted on
these areas.

Comment Last Updated:
30/06/2020 10:31:14

P
age 16



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned
Non-Housing Property Assets Description:
Failure to provide and maintain council owned
non-housing property assets. Taking
opportunities to invest in assets.
Consequences: Economic development,
Unsafe assets

Ka Ng Asset Management Plan

Property Portfolio

Current Score
50

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The Council has a capital work
programme in place to adequately maintain its
non-housing assets, and all key planned are
on target. The team continues to be
responsive to day to day repairs and
maintenance. A refresh of the councils asset
management plan is well underway with a
base data review having been commissioned
through our advisors. A quick response has
needed to be put in place to manage property
risks remotely, which has included working
with our insurers to balance the risk of
spreading COVID19 against the need for
regular inspections. We have maintained all
compliance checks, increased these where
use of buildings has reduced, and will
continue to do so through the period of the
pandemic. Cleaning of buildings has also
been increased. We have worked with the
Risk and Resilience Manager to ensure our
managed buildings are COVID-secure.

Comment Last Updated:
30/06/2020 19:26:24

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Effects of Brexit Description:
Preparing the borough and council for
exiting the EU by understanding the effect
on 1) communities and residents, 2)
businesses and economy, and 3) The
council, along with any actions we need to
take. Consequences: Additional costs,
Economic - inward investment, Economic
development, Community impact,
Economic - loss of funding

Rob Bridge Brexit - appropriate action plan to be produced

Brexit - Communication to
businesses/communities

Brexit - LRF Strategic Co-ordinating Group

Brexit - MHCLG Seminar

Corporate Governance - engagement with
Councillors

ECMT Brexit Workshop

LGA Membership

LGA support and briefings

Current Score
18

Indicator
2

Probability

2
 

Impact

3
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Following the passing of the EU
Withdrawal Bill the UK left the EU on 31
January 2020 and has entered into a transition
period currently running to 31 December 2020.
We have continued to engage proactively on
anticipated impacts with both the LGA and
EELGA but it remains to be seen what effect
Covid-19 has on local preparations to leave
with or without agreement on a trade deal at
the end of this year, and what this will mean for
residents and businesses in this borough.

Comment Last Updated:
22/04/2020 15:57:01

P
age 17



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Homelessness Description:
Failure to meet the demand of homelessness
due to lack of provision of temporary housing
and permanent housing Consequences:
Intervention by regulatory bodies, Additional
costs, Reputational damage, Increased
homelessness, Community impact, Service
delivery - can't met demand, Legal -
Regulatory, Financial Implications, Risk to
residents wellbeing

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Delivery Strategy

Finance - budgetary control by managers

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy

Night Shelter and rough sleeper navigators

Private Sector Navigator post

Provision of temporary accommodation stock

Use of funding for homeless prevention

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The demand on the service
remains high, with an increase of around 15%
of approaches to the housing options service
from households over the last six months. We
have a plan to make additional provision of
temporary accommodation, both in the interim
and in the longer term - by developing purpose
built accommodation and increasing capacity.
We are also focussing on prevention and have
recently commissioned a new mediation
service, as well as secured funding for two
Rough Sleeper Navigators posts, who will
work with long term rough sleepers to help
them settle into accommodation and prevent
future homelessness The Housing,
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
is now complete, along with the Action Plan
and this will be presented to members in
June.

Comment Last Updated:
23/04/2019 17:51:29

P
age 18



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic
Description: The Covid-19 pandemic is
seriously impacting on council services and
local communities. Employee absence will
place strain on the council, as will significant
changes to work practices, adaptations to
service delivery and resultant backlog
management. There are likely to be significant
budgetary implications. Managing the response
to the outbreak locally will impact council
resources, capacity and priorities.
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Inadequate service shaping,
Community impact, Economic development,
HR - High Staff Turnover, Low morale, H&S -
Injuries and ill health, Lost productivity,
Sickness absence, Financial - affects on
receipts, Economic - inward investment, Service
delivery - loss/reduction, Service delivery - can't
met demand, Harm to Vulnerable People,
Economic - loss of funding, Risk to residents
wellbeing, Backlog needing to be managed,
Slippage to corporate projects, Reduced
income, Opportunity to modernise/transform,
Greater understanding of resilience, Enhanced
team working/collaboration, Enhancements to
partnership working

Rob Bridge All staff Communications

CMT+

Comms - Communications Team

Comms - Corporate Communications
Strategy

County Wide SCG, TCG and cells

Dynamic responses to service challenges

Flexible HR policies

Heeding PHE Advice

Hertfordshire Resilience

ICT home working arrangements

Implementation of local social distancing -
office closures

Infectious Disease Group

Operations Shield and Sustain

WHBC Pandemic Plan

Current Score
125

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We continue to respond to the
pandemic’s effects using all our resources. A
report on this work was submitted to full
Council in May 2020, and this sets out how we
continue to provide our critical services, as
well as new functions arising from the
pandemic, and multi-agency work streams.
We have also submitted reports on both
recovery and the financial impacts to Cabinet.
As we emerge from the first wave of the
pandemic, our planning has now turned to
recovery, and building a ‘new normality’. We
have reviewed the Action Plan to identify
impacts on objectives

Comment Last Updated:
11/05/2020 12:28:49

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Risk Report
Appendix B - Top Operational Risks

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Tree failure Description: The risk of
failure of a tree with resultant risk to property or
life Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill
health, Legal - Litigation, Additional costs

Ann
Macdonald

Planning - Contractors

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - Risk Assessment

Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score
75

Indicator
1

Probability

3
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Tree Officers not carrying out
regular tree visits, so heightened risk that
some trees could become dangerous and
lose branches or fall during the coronavirus
crisis.

Comment Last Updated:
06/04/2020 14:19:31

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Client - Collection Risks Description: Maintain
collection rates for council tax and business
rates. Consequences: Financial - affects on
receipts, Reputational damage, Service
delivery - loss/reduction

Farhad Cantel Client - Partner Management

Current Score
100

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Due to the current COVID-19
pandemic, there will be additional financial
pressures on residents and businesses.
Whilst the Government has announced a
range of measures (including extension of the
small business rates relief scheme, retail
relief, small business grants, retail and
hospitality grants, and council tax hardship
funds) we are expecting that there will be an
impact on the collection rates, and ultimately
this could impact on the funds available to the
Council. This is being closely monitored, and
we are working with other Councils to look at
emerging trends and collection rates. We are
also closely monitoring our Council Tax
Support levels. ?

Comment Last Updated:
30/06/2020 19:29:15

P
age 21



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Client - ICT Virus or Hacking Attack Description:
Attack by introduction of a virus or by hacking.
Consequences - Corruption of systems by the
introduction of a virus or access to confidential
information by hacking. Consequences:
Reputational damage, ICT - loss of service,
Additional costs, Customer dissatisfaction,
Financial Implications

Farhad Cantel ICT - data encryption

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - malware detection

Current Score
75

Indicator
1

Probability

3
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Due to the current COVID19
pandemic, the Council is working rapidly to
ensure remote working is available to
employees, and that new technologies are
deployed to ensure staff remain connected
and processes flow efficiently. There is a
heightened risk of cyber attacks during such
times as hackers may take advantage of such
situations. The ICT team are proactively
reviewing security measures of software and
technology in advance of deployment, and
also ensuring reminders are sent to staff and
members reminding them about email
security.

Comment Last Updated:
14/04/2020 21:40:11

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Env.Services - Car Park income Description:
Reduced income if charges are perceived to
high - competitors undercut parking charges -
less shoppers - less business usage: Risk:
loss of income and parking in roads and
complaints - reputational Consequences:
Reputational damage

Durk Reyner Car parks

Current Score
80

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The car parks have seen a
dramatic fall in usage since the introduction of
restriction in vehicle movements and the
closure of most retail outlets. The Council to
support the community has offered free
parking for the foreseeable future. This has
heightened the risk significantly, that the car
parks will not receive the level of parking
occupants over the next few months, and
result in reduced income.

Comment Last Updated:
17/04/2020 17:06:40

P
age 22



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Planning - Housing land supply Description:
Failure to maintain rolling five year housing
land supply, which puts Council at risk of
having to approve undesirable developments
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Intervention, Environment -
hostile developments, Financial - financial
penalties, Speculative planning applications

Sue Tiley Planning - AMR

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Current Score
80

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Housing Land Supply situation
likely to worsen during coronavirus crisis, as
most construction sites are shut and workers
and furloughed. May be appropriate to lobby
Gov for ease of requirements during this
period and reasonable recovery period, to
avoid risk of speculative planning applications.

Comment Last Updated:
06/04/2020 14:08:44

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Planning - Economic development
Description: Continued provision of a well-
regarded economic development function to
assist businesses Consequences: Economic
development, Poor partnership working, Loss
of trust, Economic - inward investment

Colin Haigh Planning - Business Forum

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Current Score
125

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Coronavirus will have significant
impacts on businesses and high streets. UK
likely to be in recession for considerable
period of time. Many companies, shops and
self-employed may struggle to re-open once
situation is back to vague normality. Many
businesses will owe money to Government
and banks. Economic Development function
will seek to assist wherever possible.

Comment Last Updated:
06/04/2020 14:03:25

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Campus West - Availability of RollerCity as a
Reception Centre Description: Risk of
RollerCity not being available as a designated
Reception Centre in the event of a civil
emergency or other reason in the borough.
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries and ill health

Paul
Underwood

H&S - Collective Responsibility of Executive
Board

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Roller City is currently closed to the
public due to Covid-19 so it is unlikely it could
be safely opened as an emergency reception
centre at short notice at this time due to the
need to maintain social distancing and other
restrictive control measures. A fully updated
risk assessment would need to be produced if
this is required.

Comment Last Updated:
15/07/2020 15:52:48

P
age 23



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Campus West - Production of an annual
Pantomime Description: Risks associated with
the production of an annual pantomime in-
house at Campus West. Consequences:
Reputational damage, Additional costs,
Customer dissatisfaction, Financial - affects on
receipts

Paul
Underwood

Staff

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: It has been necessary to cancel the
2020 production of 'Jack and the Beanstalk'
due to the significant impacts arising from
Covid-19. It would not have been possible to
maintain social distancing for either the cast
or crew, and a major reduction in the seating
capacity in the theatre would mean production
costs would not be covered. So this year's
production has been postponed to 2021.

Comment Last Updated:
15/07/2020 15:58:56

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Leisure Contract - Failure of Contractor
Description: Risk of failing leisure services
following an assignment of the contract with
Greenwich Leisure Ltd (GLL) from 1 May
2018. A new contractor monitoring framework
is in place with GLL to help control this risk
and has worked well. The contractor has
provided an initial assurance that they do not
think performance of their local contract with
the council will be negatively impacted by
Brexit but will continue to review this. However
Covid-19 has had far reaching impacts
following the closure of all of their managed
sport and leisure sites from March 2020
onwards. A phased recovery plan is being
implemented over the second half of 2020
which will oversee the safe reopening of most
of their managed centres and services.
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Inadequate service shaping, Community
impact, Customer dissatisfaction, Poor
partnership working, Service delivery -
loss/reduction, Loss of trust

Paul
Underwood

Property - Asset Management Plan

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score
75

Indicator
1

Probability

3
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Our main sport and leisure
contractor, GLL, closed all of their managed
centres and furloughed almost all staff from
20 March 2020 due to impacts arising from
Covid-19, and to be consistent with the
government's lockdown instructions. While a
phased recovery plan is now in effect over the
second half of 2020, a new financial support
arrangement has been in effect between the
Council and GLL since March to enable them
to remain in business over a period where
their income has reduced to almost zero in the
borough. It is unlikely they will return to full
operating capacity until 2021 and that
assumes a further lessening of restrictions,
including an end to social distancing for their
indoor centres.

Comment Last Updated:
15/07/2020 16:09:16

P
age 24



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Loss of major businesses
Description: Loss of major businesses, in
terms of jobs, economic development,
prosperity, skills and town centre vitality
Consequences: Community impact, Economic
development, Economic - local infrastructure

Colin Haigh Planning - Business Forum

Current Score
125

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Very likely that some businesses
and shops will not reopen once situation
returns to vague normality. Supermarkets are
still open, which is encouraging for long-term
viability of Tesco and Ocado. Many other
businesses are closed and will take time to
reopen, re-establish supply chains and
contact customers. John Lewis store in WGC
is shut and may not be first to reopen.

Comment Last Updated:
06/04/2020 14:12:37

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Planning - Hackitt Review Description: Tighter
regulations for multi-occupied residential
buildings (18+ metres or 6+ storeys) and other
complex buildings. Consequences: Unsafe
assets, Loss of trust

Colin Haigh Planning - Consultation

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Gov has agreed to adopt all 53
recommendations of Hackitt Review, including
new regulatory body to oversee arrangements,
requirement for duty-holders, accountable
persons and building safety managers,
golden thread of digital building information,
fire statements to accompany planning
applications and resident engagement
strategies.

Comment Last Updated:
06/04/2020 14:07:06

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Audit Committee Progress Report 

 
28 September 2020 

 
 
 

Recommendations 
 

Members are recommended to: 

 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 
period to 11 September 2020 and 

 Note the implementation status of internal 
audit recommendations and the management 
response.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 
 

Contents 
 
1  Introduction and Background 

1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 

2  Audit Plan Update 
2.1   Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings 
2.4   Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates 
2.5   Proposed Amendments to the 2020/21 Annual Audit 

 Plan 
2.7   High Priority Recommendations 
2.9  Medium Priority Recommendations 
2.11  Performance Management 

 
Appendices 
 
A   Progress against the 2020/21 Audit Plan 
 
B   2020/21 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 

Management 
 
C Implementation Status of Outstanding Medium 

Priority Recommendations as at 11 September 
2020  

 
D Assurance and Finding Definitions 2020/21 
  

Page 28



 

Page 3 
 

1. Introduction and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report details: 
 
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 

the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2020/21 as at 11 September 2020. 
b) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2020/21 Audit Plan. 
c) Proposed amendments to the 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan report. 
d) The implementation status of previously agreed audit recommendations. 
e) An update on performance management information as at 11 September 

2020. 
 

Background 
 

1.2 The 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 19 March 2020. 

 
1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 

Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the second report on the delivery of the 
2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 

the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed Annual Audit Plan. 
 

2. Audit Plan Update 
 
 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings 
 
2.1 As at 11 September 2020, 39% of the 2020/21 Audit Plan days had been 

delivered (the calculation excludes contingency).   
 

2.2 The following 2019/20 final reports have been issued since 12 June 2020 
(cut-off date for the SIAS Update Report for 25 June 2020 Audit Committee): 
 

Audit Title Date of Issue Assurance 
Level 

Number of 
Recommendations 

Homelessness 
Reduction Act 

August 2020 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 2 Low 

Business World August 2020 Satisfactory 3 Medium, 1 Low 

 

Page 29



 

Page 4 
 

2.3 The following 2020/21 final report have been issued since 12 June 2020 (cut-
off date for the SIAS Update Report for 25 June 2020 Audit Committee): 
 

Audit Title Date of Issue Assurance 
Level 

Number of 
Recommendations 

Disaster Recovery September 2020 Good 2 Low 

Responsive Repairs August 2020 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 1 Low 

 
Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates 
 

2.4 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2019/20 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year. 
 
Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan 
 

2.5 At the start of the financial year, Council and SIAS resources were focused on 
responding to the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, there have been some 
delays in progressing the 2020/21 audit plan (delays to the 2020/21 audit 
plans were experienced across all SIAS partners). As a result of the loss of 
available time to deliver the originally agreed plan, the SIAS Board agreed to 
a reduction in the total number of planned days across the partnership, this 
amounted to 26 days for Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. The following 
changes were agreed with management and are proposed to this committee:  
 
a) Food Safety (10 days) – Audit Cancelled – as a result of officer 

availability to support this audit given the ongoing pressure within the 
service area. This audit will be considered for inclusion in the 2021/22 
audit plan; 

b) Joint Reviews and Shared Learning (5 days) – Cancelled – allocation of 
planned days to be removed from the plan in agreement with SIAS Board 
to suspend these activities allowing time to be spend on assurance 
activities; 

c) Contingency (5 days) – Removed – allocation for contingency to be 
removed from the plan; 

d) Treasury Management (1 day) – Day Reduction (8 to 7 days) – reduced 
the budget for this audit by 1 day; 

e) Climate Change and Sustainability (1 day) – Day Reduction (8 to 7 days) 
– reduced the budget for this audit by 1 day. This project is being delivered 
at all SIAS District and Borough partners and this change brings the 
number of days in line with the other partners; 

f) Finalisation of 2019/20 Projects (3 days) – Day Reduction – reduced the 
number of days required for completing 2019/20 projects as performance 
in 2019/20 exceeded planned delivery at year end; 

g) Recommendations Follow Up (1 day) – Day Reduction – reduced the 
budget for follow ups to reflect the reduction in follow up required during 
Q1 and Q2. 

Page 30



 

Page 5 
 

 
2.6 The impact of the above changes means that the total number of days to be 

delivered is 279 days, reduced from 305 as originally approved by this 
Committee in March 2020. In making the above changes, the planned audit 
projects have been safeguarded and only one assurance project has been 
removed from the plan to ensure that assurance opinions provided to the 
Council for this financial year are well informed. 
 
High Priority Recommendations 
 

2.7 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management. This includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. It is Internal Audit’s responsibility to 
bring to Members’ attention the non-implementation of high priority 
recommendations. It is the responsibility of officers to implement the 
recommendations by the agreed date. 
 

2.8 There are no high priority recommendations that remain outstanding and we 
have not made any new high priority recommendations during 2020/21. 
 
Medium Priority Recommendations  
 

2.9 From 1 April 2019, SIAS has assumed responsibility for the co-ordination of 
following up the implementation status of Internal Audit medium priority 
recommendations from the Council’s Principal Governance Officer. Internal 
Audit has worked with Council management to develop a database of audit 
recommendations, regardless of the recommendation priority, to monitor the 
implementation status and progress to date. It has been agreed with Council 
management that SIAS will follow up all recommendations made since 1 April 
2018. 
 

2.10 Appendix C details the implementation status of all ‘Medium’ priority 
recommendations that have not been fully implemented by the original target 
date, or for which no management response has been received at the date of 
this report. Appendix C has been abridged to fit this Progress Report, and the 
full database is maintained on a shared drive. This can be supplied by Council 
management on request, should it be required. Typically, a summary of the 
status of all ‘Medium’ priority recommendations is set out in a table, however 
there are no medium recommendations that have reached their targets dates 
prior to this Committee. 

 
Performance Management 
 

2.11 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis. As at 11 September 2020, actual performance for 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council against the targets that can be monitored in 
year is set out in the table below: 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

Page 6 
 

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target to 11 
September 

2020 

Actual to  
11 September 

2020 

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency) 

95% 
48% 

(133 / 279 
days) 

39% 
(109.5 / 279 

days) 

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects 

95% 
36% 

(8 / 22 
projects) 

18% 
(4 / 22 projects) 

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level  

100% 100% 

100%  
(2 surveys 
returned at 

satisfactory level 
out of 4 issued) 

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95% 

N/A 
(None made) 

 
2.12 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  

Performance against these targets will be reported in the 2020/21 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report: 
 
5. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee. If there is no March meeting, then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year. 
 
6. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit Committee’s 
first meeting of the civic year.

Page 32



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 SEPTEMBER 2020 

 

Page 7 
 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 
C 

RECS 
H 

RECS 
M 

RECS 
L 

RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

Key Financial Systems 

Business World (Financial 
System) 

     15 Yes 0  

Housing Benefit      10 Yes 0  

Housing Rents      10 Yes 0  

Payroll      12 Yes 0  

Revenues       15 Yes 0  

Treasury Management      7 Yes 0  

Corporate Audits 

Absence Management      15 Yes 14.5 Draft Report Issued 

Housing Development 
Company 

     15 Yes 3 In Fieldwork 

Operational Audits 

Building Services Asset 
Management 

     10 Yes 6 In Fieldwork 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

     7 Yes 0  

Council Website      15 Yes 0  

DFG Grant Certification      2 Yes 0.5 In Fieldwork 

Food Safety      0 Yes 0 Cancelled 

Housing Land Supply      10 Yes 3 In Fieldwork 

Independent Living Service      12 Yes 10.5 In Fieldwork 

Lone Worker Devices      10 Yes 0  

Regulating Private Housing      10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued 

Responsive Repairs Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued 

P
age 33



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 SEPTEMBER 2020 

 

Page 8 
 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 
C 

RECS 
H 

RECS 
M 

RECS 
L 

RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

Right to Buy Pooling      10 Yes 5 In Fieldwork 

Procurement / Contracts 

Street Scene Contract 
Management 

     10 Yes 0  

IT Audits 

Disaster Recovery Good 0 0 0 2 12 Yes 12 Final Report Issued 

GDPR      6 Yes 5 In Fieldwork 

IT Asset Management      12 Yes 7 In Fieldwork 

Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 

Joint Reviews      0  0 Cancelled 

Shared Learning      0  0 Cancelled 

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 

Contingency & Ad Hoc 
Activity 

     0  0  

Strategic Support 

Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion 2019/20 

     3  3 Complete 

Audit Committee      8  4 Through Year 

Client Meetings      6  3 Through Year 

Liaison with External Audit      1  0  

Progress Monitoring      8  4 Through Year 

SIAS Development      5  5 Complete 

2021/22 Audit Planning      6  0  

Recommendations Follow      5 Yes 2.5 Through Year 

P
age 34



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 SEPTEMBER 2020 

 

Page 9 
 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 
C 

RECS 
H 

RECS 
M 

RECS 
L 

RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

Up 

2019/20 Projects requiring completion 

Finalisation of Projects      2 Yes 2 Complete 

Total – Welwyn Hatfield 
B.C. 

  0 0 2 3 279  109.5  

 

P
age 35



APPENDIX B – 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Page 10 
 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

Housing Development Company 

In Fieldwork 

Housing Land Supply 

In Fieldwork 
Business World (Financial System) Council Website 

Independent Living Service 

In Fieldwork 

Right to Buy Pooling 

In Fieldwork 
Treasury Management Lone Worker Devices 

Responsive Repairs 

Final Report Issued 

Corporate Property Asset 
Management 

In Fieldwork 

Payroll Streetscene Contract Management 

GDPR 

In Fieldwork 

DFG Grant Certification 

In Fieldwork 
Revenues Climate Change and Sustainability 

Disaster Recovery (moved from quarter 

2) 

Final Report Issued 

IT Asset Management (Moved from 

quarter 4) 

In Fieldwork 

Benefits 
Food Safety 

Cancelled 

Regulating Private Housing 

Draft Report Issued 
 Housing Rents  

Absence Management (moved from 

quarter 2) 

Draft Report Issued 

   

2019/20 Projects requiring 
completion 

Complete 

   

P
age 36



APPENDIX C – STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMEDATIONS MADE SINCE 1 APRIL 2018 
 

 

Page 11 
 

 
No medium priority recommendations have reached their target dates (or revised target dates) during this follow up cycle.

P
age 37



APPENDIX D – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2020/21 

 

Page 12 
 

 

Assurance Level Definition 

Good 
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key 
risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor 
reportable audit findings. 

Satisfactory 
The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some 
audit findings related to the current arrangements.   

Limited 
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved. 

No 
The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention. 

    

Priority Level Definition 

Critical 
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. 
reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement 
the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

High 
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by 
management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial 
action is required urgently. 

Medium 
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of 
some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner. 

Low / Advisory 
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance 
the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is practically 
possible. 

 

P
age 38



Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council
Audit results report 

Year ended 31 March 2020
18 September 2020

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9



2

Private and Confidential 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 18 September 2020
The Campus
Welwyn Garden City
Hertfordshire
AL8 6AE

Dear Audit Committee Members 

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. This report summarises our
preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (the Authority) for 2019/20.

At the date of this report our audit of the Authority’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 is substantially complete. Subject 
to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements in the form at Section 3 of this report. As set out on pages 5 to 8, as per our update to the Committee in June 2020, the 
Covid-19 pandemic has impacted the statements and our audit opinion. We have no matters to report on your arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior management. It 
should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement given the additional pressures they have faced responding to 
the pandemic and working remotely.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 28 September 
2020.

Yours faithfully 

Andrew Brittain

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP                                                                                       Encl

P
age 40



3

Contents

Executive 
Summary01 04Areas of 

Audit Focus02 Audit Report03

Other 
reporting 
issues

06

Audit 
Differences

Appendices10Assessment of 
Control 
Environment

07 Data 
Analytics

08 Independence09

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA 
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out 
additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and 
procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, 
take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue 
up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any 
complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our 
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

05 Value for 
Money

V
F
M

P
age 41

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


4

Executive Summary01

P
age 42



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report tabled at the March 2020 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for 
the audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions which we reported to the 
Committee in June 2020.

Changes to reporting timescales

As a result of COVID-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 404, have been published and 
came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all 
relevant authorities.

Changes to our risk assessment as a result of Covid-19

• Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment - The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property 
valuations, issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there is a 
material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty were included in the year-end valuation report produced by the Authority’s external 
valuer. We considered that the material uncertainties disclosed by the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of 
property, plant and equipment. This is particularly relevant for assets valued at fair value (such as investment properties) or some valued at existing 
use value (EUV) because of the paucity of reliable market information available at 31 March 2020 upon which to give those valuations. As reported to 
the Audit Committee in June we have recognised the valuation of investment properties and other land and buildings as a significant risk. 

• Disclosures on Going Concern – The pandemic has had a significant impact on the Authority’s finances and as a result there was a need for the 
Authority to revisit and update financial plans for 2020/21 and the medium term financial plan. As we reported to the June Committee, we 
determined that the unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the Authority would not appropriately disclose the key factors 
relating to going concern, underpinned by management’s assessment with particular reference to Covid-19 and the Authority’s actual year end 
financial position and performance. 

• Events after the balance sheet date – We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the Covid-19 
pandemic would need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needs to reflect the specific circumstances of the Authority.

• Adoption of IFRS16 – The adoption of IFRS 16 has been deferred until 1 April 2021. We therefore no longer considered this to be an area of audit 
focus for 2019/20.

• Impairment of receivables – We identified impairment of receivables as a new area of focus, and reported this to the Audit Committee in June. The 
Authority holds material third party receivable balances as at 31 March 2020. There is a risk of increasing amounts written off as irrecoverable and 
impairment of year-end balances due to the potentially increasing number of businesses and residents unable to meet their financial obligations. We 
have reviewed significant judgements made by management. 

P
age 43



6

Executive Summary

Scope update

Changes to the scope of our audit as a result of Covid-19

• As the Authority holds material land and buildings, we have engaged our own experts to support our audit procedures.

Changes in materiality - In our Audit Committee Planning Report, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of 
£2.4m, with performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £1.8m, and a threshold for reporting misstatements of £123k. We updated our 
planning materiality assessment using the draft results and have also reconsidered our risk assessment. Based on our materiality measure of gross 
expenditure on provision of services, we have updated our overall materiality assessment to £2.6m. This results in updated performance materiality, at 
75% of overall materiality, of £1.9m.

Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information 
produced by the Authority due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Authority’s systems. We 
undertook the following to address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports because of Covid-19.
The continued impact of the Covid-19 pandemic increases the risks to the material accuracy of financial statements and disclosures. To ensure we are 
providing the right assurances to the Authority and its stakeholders the firm has introduced a rigorous consultation process for all auditor reports to 
ensure that they include the appropriate narrative. 

The changes to audit risks, audit approach and auditor reporting requirements changed the level of work we needed to perform. We will determine the 
impact on our audit fee and discuss with the Corporate Director at the conclusion of the audit. 

P
age 44



7

Executive Summary

Audit differences

There are potential material adjustments related to property valuation which will be adjusted. Our work on valuations is still in progress and needs to be 
concluded. This is further discussed on page 13 of this report. We will update this report and the Committee when this work has been finalised. 

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council financial statements for the year 31 March 2020 and have performed the 
procedures outlined in our Audit planning report. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified 
opinion on the Authority’s financial statements in the form which appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

• Completion of procedures on property valuations.

• Completion of procedures on the pension disclosures as we are awaiting assurances from the auditor of Hertfordshire Pension Fund.

• Completion of our review of the Authority’s going concern assessment and new disclosure note.

• Clearance of queries arising from review by Associate Partner and Manager

• Review of the final version of the financial statements.

• Completion of our final review processes.

• Completion of our audit report consultation processes.

• Completion of subsequent events review.

• Receipt of the signed management representation letter.

WGA timetable has been moved to later in the year and we do not expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit report. We will 
submit the required return in due course and in accordance with the deadline set. 

Our audit opinion will emphasise the following :

• Valuation of investment properties and other land and buildings valued using market data – We will include an “emphasis of matter” paragraph to draw 
users attention to the Council’s valuer’s material uncertainty disclosure in Note 4 of the accounts. This is not a modification to the audit report. 

P
age 45



8

Executive Summary

Control observations 

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls. However, from the results of substantive procedures 
performed we have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material 
misstatement in your financial statement.

Value for money

We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third 
parties. In our Audit Planning Report and June update we identified no significant risks. 

We have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We have no 
matters to report as a result of this work. 

Subject to the finalisation of the areas in the Status of Audit work section, we have no other matters to report. 

Independence

We have no matters relating to our Independence to bring to your attention. Please refer to Section 9 for our update on Independence.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Planning Report and the June 2020 update identified significant risks and key areas of focus for our audit of Welwyn Hatfield Borough’s 
financial statements. This report sets out our observations and conclusions, including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there 
is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these matters in this report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:

• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an  impact on these issues

• You agree with the resolution of the issue

• There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to your attention.

P
age 46



9

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 47



10

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or 
error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because 
of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and 
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

What did we do?

• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.

• Understood the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes 
over fraud.

• Considered of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

• Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other 
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements

• Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and

• Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

In addition to our overall response, we considered where these risks may present themselves and 
identified a separate fraud risk related to the capitalisation of revenue expenditure as set out on the 
next slide.

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material 
weaknesses in controls or evidence of material 
management override.

We have not identified any instances of 
inappropriate judgements being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions 
during our audit which appeared unusual or 
outside the Authority‘s normal course of 
business

What judgements are we focused on?

We focussed on testing key areas that are susceptible to management bias.

Significant Risk

P
age 48



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What is the risk?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. In considering how the risk of 
management override may present itself, we conclude that this is primarily through management taking 
action to override controls and manipulate in year financial transactions that impact the medium to longer 
term projected financial position. A key way of improving the revenue position is through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure. The Council has a significant fixed asset base and a material capital 
programme and therefore has the potential to materially impact the revenue position through 
inappropriate capitalisation.

What judgements are we focused on?

We focussed on the testing capital expenditure and obtaining evidence that additions 
have been correctly classified as capital expenditure. 

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error –
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure

What did we do?

We took a substantive approach to respond to this risk, undertaking the following 
procedures:

• Tested a sample of capital expenditure at a lower testing threshold, to verify that 
revenue costs had not been inappropriately capitalised;

• Reviewed unusual journal pairings related to capital expenditure posted around the 
year-end i.e. where the debit is to capital expenditure and the credit to income and 
expenditure.

What are our conclusions?

Our audit work did not identify any material issues or 
unusual transactions to indicate any misreporting of the 
Authority’s financial position through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Significant Risk

P
age 49



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What is the risk?

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Property (IP) represent significant 
balances in the Authority’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet. Covid-19 has impacted the 
valuation of the Authority’s investment properties and other assets valued using market data as outlined by 
the Authority’s valuer. This is because of the paucity of reliable market information available at 31 March 
2020 upon which to give those valuations. The Authority has included in Note 4 of the accounts reference 
to the valuers material uncertainty. 

Valuation of property, 
including investment 
properties

What did we do?

• Considered the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities 
and the results of their work.

• Engaged our valuations specialist (EY Real Estates) to review a sample of other land & buildings & investment properties asset valuations to verify the 
reasonableness of the valuation methodology applied and key assumptions used. 

• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the valuation of remaining asset base was not materially misstated.

• Checked that the material uncertainly reported by the Authority's valuer was appropriately disclosed in the financial statements. 

• Checked that the valuers report reconciles to Authority’s fixed asset register.

• Assessed the classification of assets, the valuation basis that was assigned and any material increases or impairments that arise during the year with 
no issues arising

• Tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s financial statements to confirm these complied with relevant accounting 
standards and the Code, for example ensuring that any revaluation gains and losses have been accounted for in the revaluation reserve or charged to 
the income and expenditure account as appropriate;

What judgements are we focused on?

Our work on valuations focussed on assessing the reasonableness of the methodologies adopted by the valuers in undertaking their valuations in 
2019/20 and of the key assumptions input into these valuations. We have also considered those assets that were not valued in 2019/20 and the 
potential for material misstatement in the valuation of those assets.

Significant Risk

P
age 50



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What are our conclusions?

• We have substantially completed our work in response to this risk, including the work carried out by our valuations specialist (EY Real Estates). 

• Our work on valuations is still in progress and needs to be concluded.  

Findings

Leisure centres: The Authority’s external valuer (Avison Young) changed the valuation method for Hatfield Swim Centre to incorporate peppercorn 
lease arrangement with Greenwich Leisure Limited resulting in £0 value for building (2018/19: £5.2m). This asset was last valued in 2017/18 by the 
previous valuer (Carter Jonas) using full DRC approach. 

We challenged the management and it was concluded as a specialised asset full DRC is the most appropriate basis to value. The lease with Greenwich 
Leisure Limited is not relevant in this context and the valuation should be driven by the service potential of the asset. There is no active market for 
Leisure Centres and we agree therefore that DRC is the most appropriate methodology. The building was refurbished in c.1990 is not expected it to be 
totally obsolete at 31 March 2020. At the time of writing this report, we haven't received revised valuation for this asset. 

Community centres: At the time of writing this report, we are discussing with the management to understand the valuation basis and conclude 
accordingly. 

The Authority’s external valuer did disclose a ‘material uncertainty’ in its year end valuation report in line with RICS guidance. The Authority repeated 
the ‘material uncertainty’ in the statement of accounts. Based on the work we have undertaken we are satisfied that the carrying value of PPE and IP 
disclosed in the financial statements is materially accurate. As noted on page 7 we intend to include an emphasis of matter paragraph in our audit report 
highlighting the Council’s revised disclosure in this area to the reader of the accounts.

For clarity, an emphasis of matter paragraph is not a modification of our opinion. It is a paragraph in our report which highlights a disclosure in the 
financial statements that, in our judgment, is of importance to the users’ understanding of the financial statements. 

P
age 51



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Authority to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding 
its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Hertfordshire County Council. The Authority’s pension fund deficit is a 
material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Authority’s balance sheet. 

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Authority by the actuary to the Pension Fund. 

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations 
on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.

Our approach has focused on:

• Liaising with the auditors of Hertfordshire Pension Fund to obtain assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council;

• Assessing the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by the NAO for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Reviewing and testing the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Authority’s financial statements in relation to IAS19.

In September 2020 the Authority obtained a revised IAS 19 report from the actuary to take into account the most recent development in respect of the 

McCloud and Goodwin ruling which occurred after year end. This would have resulted in a reduction of the pension liability by £208,000. Management 
have deemed this to be immaterial. We note that as it did not have a material impact on the pension liability, there is no requirement to be disclosed as 
post balance sheet event.

At the date of this report, we are also awaiting the IAS19 assurance letter from the auditor of the Pension Fund to enable us to complete our procedures. 

P
age 52



15

Areas of Audit Focus

Going concern disclosure 

There is presumption that the Authority will continue as a going concern. However, the current and future uncertainty over government funding and 
other sources of Authority revenue as a result of Covid-19 increases the need for the Authority to undertake a detailed going concern assessment to 
support its assertion. In light of the unprecedented nature of Covid-19, its impact on the funding of public sector entities and uncertainty over the form 
and extent of government support, we requested that management provide a documented consideration to support their assertion regarding the going 
concern basis. We also reviewed the Authority’s subsequent new disclosure note.

Our approach has focused on:

• Assessing the adequacy of disclosures required in 2019/20;

• Discussing with management the going concern assessment and challenging management’s underlying assumptions; 

• Considering the impact on our audit report, including completing the EY consultation requirements.

Findings and conclusions

The draft accounts did not include a going concern disclosure but the Corporate Director, had carried out an assessment of the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic on the Authority’s income, expenditure, balances and reserves for the May Audit Committee. We reviewed the assessment, focusing on the 
reasonableness of the financial impact assessment, cashflow and liquidity forecasts, known outcomes, sensitivities, mitigating actions and key 
assumptions, particular around reductions in fees and charges. We also discussed with management the need to make specific disclosures in the 2019/20 
statements. 

The Authority is forecasting that the net General Fund impact in 2020/21 of the Covid-19 pandemic will be around £3.3m. In common with similar 
authorities, the biggest impact is forecast to be loss of income from parking and leisure activities. The net impact compares to a General Fund balance as 
at 31st March 2020 of £8.5m and a prudent minimum balance on the General Fund of £2.6m. We therefore note that the Authority has headroom within 
the General Fund to absorb the estimated financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in the short to medium-term. 

We have now reviewed the new going concern disclosure included in the statement of accounts, and are satisfied that it adequately reflects the 
Authority’s assessment and informs the reader of the impact of the pandemic on the Authority’s finances.

At the time of writing this report, we also need to formally complete internal consultation to agree final audit opinion and conclusions in respect of the 
going concern disclosure. 

P
age 53



16

Areas of Audit Focus

Impairment of receivables 

At 31 March 2020 the Authority had £20.5m of total debtors. This included £7.6m of receivables from central government bodies and other local 
authorities. For the remaining balance, there may be risk to collection due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. To address the risk, we have 
performed the following procedures: 

• Evaluated the reasonableness of the methods and assumptions used by management to estimate the allowances for doubtful debts.

• Tested the accuracy and completeness of the data used by management to compute the bad debts provision. 

• Tested debtor samples to evaluate reasonableness of collection as at 31 March 2020. 

Findings and conclusions

We determined that the Authority had considered the impact of Covid-19 through evidence that some debtors had agreed with the Authority temporary 
deferment of payment. Our sample testing confirmed that that the impairment of receivables in the accounts was fairly stated.P

age 54



17

Audit Report03

P
age 55



18

This is an example report – our audit report will not be completed and issued until the work and internal consultation on opinion is complete.

Audit Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report below. We are independent of the authority in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the 
Comptroller and Auditor General’s (C&AG)  AGN01, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter – Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property 
valuation  

We draw attention to Note 4 - Assumptions made about future and other major 
sources of estimation Uncertainty of the statement of accounts, which describes 
the valuation uncertainty the Authority is facing as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic in relation to specific property valuations. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 under the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

• Movement in Reserves Statement, 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 

• Balance Sheet, 

• Housing Revenue Accounts and the related notes x to x; and

Collection Fund Statement and the related notes x and x.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year 
then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 56



19

This is an example report – our audit report will not be completed and issued until the work and internal consultation on opinion is complete.

Audit Report

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014

Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, having 
regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in 
April 2020, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent 
with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the 
Council;

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; or

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects 

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to 
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

• the Service Director - Resource’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Service Director - Resource’s has not disclosed in the financial statements 
any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the 
Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of 
Accounts 2019/20, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.  The Service Director – Resource is responsible for the other 
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection 
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 57



20

This is an example report – our audit report will not be completed and issued until the work and internal consultation on opinion is complete.

Audit Report

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of 
our auditor’s report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, 
having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller 
and Auditor General (C&AG) in April 2020, as to whether Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes 
for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined 
this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit 
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council put in 
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our 
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a 
view on whether, in all significant respects, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council had 
put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code 
of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report 
to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements. 

Responsibility of the Service Director - Resources  

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Responsibilities set out on page 
1, the Service Director - Resource’s is responsible for the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Service Director - Resources  is 
responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and 
effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.  

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 58



21

This is an example report – our audit report will not be completed and issued until the work and internal consultation on opinion is complete.

Audit Report

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us 
from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are 
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Delay in the certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we 
have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in 
respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack. 
We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial 
statements or on our value for money conclusion.

Until we have completed these procedures we are unable to certify that we 
have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice 
issued by the NAO.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
as a body,  in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 59



22

Audit Differences04

P
age 60



23

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and 
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and 
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to 
interpretation. 

At the time of writing, we are finalising our procedures on property valuation and the pensions liability. We will update this report and the Audit Committee as necessary. 

There are outstanding issues to be concluded related to the property valuations which is discussed on page 13 of this report. Based on revised valuations, we expect 
property balance to be adjusted as at 31 March 2020. 

Summary of adjusted differences

At the time of writing, there are no un-adjusted differences. However we are finalising our procedures on property valuation and the pensions liability. 

Summary of un-adjusted differences

P
age 61



24

Value for Money05 01

P
age 62



25

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money 
(VFM) conclusion. 

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office (NAO). 
They comprise your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;
▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you 
are already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual 
governance statement.

V
F
M

We did not identify any significant risks around these criteria.

We therefore expect having no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources. 

Overall conclusion

On 16 April 2020 the NAO published an update to auditor guidance in relation to the 2019/20 VFM assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that 
in undertaking the 2019/20 VFM assessment auditors should consider local authorities responses to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019-20 
financial year and only where clear evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of Covid-19 during the 
financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

We identified no such evidence for the Authority and therefore identified no significant VFM risk associated to Covid-19.

Impact of covid-19 on our VFM assessment

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 63



26

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 64



27

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2019/20 with the audited 
financial statements. 

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and 
whether it complies with relevant guidance. 

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2019/20 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial 
statements.

We have reviewed the latest version of the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the 
financial statements and we have no other matters to report.

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. 
The extent of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office. As the Authority’s assets, income, liabilities and 
expenditure are below the threshold set by HM Treasury, detailed audit of the return is not required for Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council.

We will submit the required return in due course and in accordance with the deadline set. 

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the 
course of the audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We also have 
a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have had no reason to exercise these duties. 

P
age 65



28

Assessment of Control 
Environment

07

P
age 66



29

Assessment of Control Environment

Financial controls

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor 
their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in 
place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice. 

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, 
timing and extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant 
deficiencies in internal control.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your 
financial statements of which you are not aware.

We considered whether circumstances arising from Covid-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness of internal 
controls, for example due to significant staff absence or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues which we wish to bring to 
your attention.

P
age 67



30

Data Analytics08

P
age 68



Page 31

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

► Data analytics — Journal Entry Analysis and Payroll Analysis

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These 
analysers:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive 
audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.

In 2019/20, our use of these analysers in the Authority’s audit included testing journal entries and 
employee expenses, to identify and focus our testing on those entries we deem to have the highest 
inherent risk to the audit.

We capture the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer takes place on a 
secured EY website. These are in line with our EY data protection policies which are designed to 
protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal information. 

Journal Entry Analysis 
We obtain downloads of all financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We perform 
completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the movement in the 
trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our analysers then 
review and sort transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test journals that we 
consider to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report. 

Payroll Analysis 
We also use our analysers in our payroll testing. We obtain all payroll transactions posted in the year 
from the payroll system and perform completeness analysis over the data, including reconciling the 
total amount to the General Ledger trial balance. We then analyse the data against a number of 
specifically designed procedures. These include analysis of payroll costs by month to identify any 
variances from established expectations, as well as more detailed transactional interrogation.

Analytics Driven Audit 

P
age 69



Page 32

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

Journal Entry Data Insights 
In line with ISA 240 we are required to test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the 
preparation of the statement of accounts. The graphic outlined below summarises the journal population for 2019/20. We review journals by certain risk 
based criteria to focus on higher risk transactions, such as journals posted manually by management, those posted around the year-end, those with 
unusual debit and credit relationships, and those posted by individuals we would not expect to be entering transactions. The purpose of this approach is 
to provide a more effective and risk focused approach to auditing journal entries.

P
age 70



33

Independence09

P
age 71



34

Independence

Confirmation

We confirm there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our audit planning report dated March 2020. 
We complied with the APB Ethical Standards. In our professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner 
and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that you and your Audit Committee 
consider the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased to do this 
at the meeting of the Audit Committee on 28 September 2020.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements in relation to our work.

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, senior management and 
its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided 
to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could 
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2019 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and 
objectivity. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The table overleaf includes a summary of the fees for the year ended 31 March 2020 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard and in 
statute. 

P
age 72



35

Independence

Fee analysis
As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

We have included the fees paid by the Authority in engaging us as a reporting accountant on DWP’s the housing benefits assurance programme. We have 
adopted the necessary safeguards in completing this work and complied with Auditor Guidance Note 1 issued by the NAO.

In our Audit Plan we outlined the basis on which the scale fees are set by PSAA and in our subsequent reporting to the Audit Committee, we have outlined 
a combination of factors which mean that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and 
complexity and therefore it endangers the sustainability of Local Audit in the future. Based on these factors, and in light of requests from PSAA to provide 
further detailed analysis we have estimated the impact on the Council as shown below. This proposal is currently being considered by PSAA as part of 
their national consideration of EY’s fee proposals. 

Note 1: We presented summary of fee impact as part of audit progress update in June 2020, and note these amounts are subject to the approval of 
PSAA. 
Note 2: We have carried out additional work in response to the material uncertainty reported by the Authority’s valuer and additional procedures to 
address Covid-19 related risks. These are specific to the 19/20 audit year and once quantified we will discuss with management and the PSAA.

All fees exclude VAT Planned fee 2019/20 Scale fee 2019/20 Final Fee 2018/19

£ £ £

Code work fee (Note 1) 74,921 47,921 55,511

Additional fee to address Covid-19 related risks TBC N/A N/A

Total audit TBC 47,921 55,511

Other non-audit services (Housing Benefits) 9,500 N/A 7,005

Additional fee for extended testing on housing benefits TBC N/A 17,500

Total other non-audit services TBC N/A 24,505

P
age 73



36

Independence

Summary of key changes

• Extraterritorial application of the FRC Ethical Standard to UK PIE and its worldwide affiliates 

• A general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (or its network) to a UK PIE, its UK parent and worldwide subsidiaries
• A narrow list of permitted services where closely related to the audit and/or required by law or regulation
• Absolute prohibition on the following relationships applicable to UK PIE and its affiliates including material significant investees/investors:

• Tax advocacy services     - Remuneration advisory services    - Internal audit services   - Secondment/loan staff arrangements
• An absolute prohibition on contingent fees.
• Requirement to meet the higher standard for business relationships i.e. business relationships between the audit firm and the audit client will only be 

permitted if it is inconsequential.
• Permitted services required by law or regulation will not be subject to the 70% fee cap.
• Grandfathering will apply for otherwise prohibited non-audit services that are open at 15 March 2020 such that the engagement may continue until 

completed in accordance with the original engagement terms. 
• A requirement for the auditor to notify the Audit Committee where the audit fee might compromise perceived independence and the appropriate 

safeguards.
• A requirement to report to the audit committee details of any breaches of the Ethical Standard and any actions taken by the firm to address any 

threats to independence. A requirement for non-network component firm whose work is used in the group audit engagement to comply with the same 
independence standard as the group auditor. Our current understanding is that the requirement to follow UK independence rules is limited to the 
component firm issuing the audit report and not to its network. This is subject to clarification with the FRC.

New UK Independence Standards
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 in December and it will apply to accounting periods starting on or after 
15 March 2020. A key change in the new Ethical Standard will be a general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (and its 
network) which will apply to UK Public Interest Entities (PIEs). A narrow list of permitted services will continue to be allowed. 

Next Steps

We do not provide any non-audit services which would be prohibited under the new standard.

EY Transparency Report 2019

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, 
independence and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can 
be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 
June 2019: https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf

Other communications

P
age 74

https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf


37

Appendices10

P
age 75



38

Appendix A

Required communications with the Audit Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of when and where 
they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported?
When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written 
in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit Plan – March 2020

Planning and audit 
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit Plan – March 2020

Significant findings 
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit Results Report – September 2020

P
age 76



39

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were identified, either 
individually or together to raise any doubt 
about Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s 
ability to continue for the 12 months from the 
date of our report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit Results Report – September 2020

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the Audit Committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent 
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit Results Report – September 2020

P
age 77



40

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related 
parties including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit Results Report – September 2020

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

For public interest entities and listed companies, communication of minimum requirements 
as detailed in the FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019:

• Relationships between EY, the company and senior management, its affiliates and its 
connected parties

• Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the auditors’ objectivity and 
independence

• Related safeguards

• Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such as statutory audit fees, 
tax advisory fees, other non-audit service fees

• A statement of compliance with the Ethical Standard, including any non-EY firms or 
external experts used in the audit

Audit Plan – March 2020 and
Audit Results Report – September 2020

P
age 78



41

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group’s policy for the 
provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy

• Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services

• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard

• The Audit Committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters affecting 
auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

We have received all requested confirmations

Consideration of laws 
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Audit Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
Audit Committee may be aware of.

We have asked management and those 
charged with governance. We have not 
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

Significant deficiencies in 
internal controls identified 
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report – September 2020

P
age 79



42

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Written representations 
we are requesting from 
management and/or those 
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit Results Report – September 2020

Material inconsistencies or 
misstatements of fact 
identified in other 
information which 
management has refused 
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – September 2020

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report – September 2020

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit Plan – March 2020 and
Audit Results Report – September 2020

P
age 80



43

Appendix B

Management representation letter
Management Rep Letter

P
age 81



44

Appendix B

Management representation letter (continued)
Management Rep Letter

P
age 82



45

Appendix B

Management representation letter (continued) 
Management Rep Letter

P
age 83



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Consultancy

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2020 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 84



Part I 
Main author: Richard Baker  
Executive Member: Councillor Duncan Bell  
All Wards  
 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITEE 28 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 
 

Part I 

INDEPENDENT REVIEW INTO THE OVERSIGHT OF LOCAL AUDIT AND THE 
TRANSPARENCY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY FINANCIAL REPORTING (“REDMOND 
REVIEW”) 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In June 2019, the Government commissioned an independent review of the 
effectiveness of local audit and transparency of local authority financial reporting. 
Sir Tony Redmond was commissioned to undertake this review. 

1.2 The findings and recommendations of the review have now been published, and 
this report seeks to make Audit Committee aware of the review and provide an 
overview of the recommendations which have been made to the Government. 

1.3 It is unclear at this stage if all recommendations will be adopted, as the 
Government has not completed its review of the report and published a formal 
response. As some of the recommendations made would require changes to 
primary legislation, there may be a phased approach adopted for implementation 
of any agreed recommendations.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the committee note the update on the Redmond Review. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In June 2019, the Government commissioned an independent review of the 
effectiveness of local audit and transparency of local authority financial reporting. 
Sir Tony Redmond was commissioned to undertake this review. The detailed 
terms of reference for this review are published on the Government website: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/atta
chment_data/file/815781/Independent_Review_ToR.pdf 

3.2 In approaching the review, Sir Redmond undertook a “call for views” from 
stakeholders, including local councils, town and parish councils, fire and rescue 
authorities, accounting bodies and audit firms. Individual stakeholder meetings 
were held, and academia and media were also used in the review. 

3.3 Some of the key areas which have been highlighted in the report, which the 
recommendations seek to address are: 

Page 85

Agenda Item 10

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/815781/Independent_Review_ToR.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/815781/Independent_Review_ToR.pdf


 The state of the local audit market and ultimately the effectiveness of the 
work undertaken by audit firms. It is felt partly that this stems from the 
balance of price and quality of contracts which were tendered. In relation 
to the effectiveness, this is not suggesting that the audits are 
unprofessional, but questions whether audit reports deliver full assurance 
on financial sustainability and value for money; 

 The fee structure and statutory timeframes, and therefore the ability to 
complete audits in a satisfactory way. Evidence used in relation to this 
element include that fact that 40% of audits failed to meet the required 
deadline for 2018/19; 

 The absence of a body which co-ordinates all stages of the audit 
process. The report suggests that while there is scope to amend existing 
roles, it would not achieve the overriding objective of providing a 
coherent local audit function which offers assurance and accountability;  

 Balancing the right level of required knowledge and expertise for the 
review and consideration of audit and financial reports; and, 

 Improving the transparency of local government finance. In particular 
local authority accounts have been referred to as being designed for 
practitioners and impenetrable to the public.  

3.4 The recommendations of the review are included in appendix A, and the full 
report and associated annexes are available on the Government’s website: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-
and-external-audit-independent-review 

3.5 It should be noted that the council is not considered a smaller authority for the 
audit and accounts purposes, so recommendations in this area do not apply to 
this council (recommendations 14, 15, 16 and 23) 

3.6 The recommendations could directly impact on the council in the following 
summarised ways: 

 Likely increase in audit fees; 

 Need for an independent member on the Audit Committee; 

 Production of additional financial summaries (although this may be offset 
by a removal of other disclosures following a review by the Local 
Authority Code Board); and, 

 Extension to audit deadlines. 

3.7 Other recommendations can be summarised as follows: 

 Introduction of a governing body to manage, oversee and regulate 
(estimated to cost around £5m); 

 A review of governance arrangements and accounting codes; 

 Ensuring local auditors are provided with the requisite skills and training 
and statue be amended to ensure audit firms with these skills are not 
excluded from bidding from local authority work; and, 

 That external audit recognises that internal audit work in appropriate 
circumstances. 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review


Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 At this stage, the report only sets out recommendations to the Government and 
has no legal standing. Some of the recommendations will require amendments to 
primary legislation if adopted.  

4.2 The Government’s response to the review, when published, will set out whether 
recommendations are adopted and how these will be approached.  

4.3 The council will need to ensure it complies with any changes to the codes of 
practice and legislation as these arise. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 Whist it is not clear how these recommendations may impact on audit fees, detail 
within the report highlights that four large firms have suggested increases of 
between 15% and 25% would be required. 

5.2 The additional work recommended on reporting is not anticipated to require 
additional resourcing as it is expected this could be managed within existing 
resources.  

5.3 It has been flagged that sourcing a professionally skilled individual to sit as an 
independent person on the Audit Committee may be difficult to source, and it is 
recognised that financial incentives may be required to attract suitable 
candidates. 

5.4 It should be noted that representations were made by councils that extending 
audit deadlines may take resources away from budget setting and planning for 
future financial challenges, and if the recommendations are accepted careful 
planning for the timing of audit work will be required. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Risks associated are set out in this report including the financial risks associated 
with an increase in fees, resource implications and potential difficulties in 
sourcing an independent person to sit on Audit Committee. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 Not applicable  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 Not applicable 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Not applicable 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 Not applicable 

  

Page 87



11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Not applicable  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The recommended format for the summary of accounts has been recommended 
to improve transparency and therefore engagement of residents. The optimum 
way to communicate this information to residents and service users has been left 
to local authorities to consider.  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority “Our 
Council”. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed for this report. 

 
Name of author Richard Baker 
Title Head of Resources 
Date 17 September 2020 
 
 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Recommendations of the Redmond Review  

Page 88



Appendix A – Recommendations of the Redmond Review 

External Audit Regulation  

1. A new body, the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), be created to 
manage, oversee and regulate local audit with the following key responsibilities:   

 
• procurement of local audit contracts;   
• producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit;  
• management of local audit contracts; 
• monitoring and review of local audit performance; 
• determining the code of local audit practice; and 
• regulating the local audit sector.  

 
2. The current roles and responsibilities relating to local audit discharged by the:   
 

• Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA); 
• Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW); 
• FRC/ARGA; and 
• The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) to be transferred to the OLAR.  

  
3. A Liaison Committee be established comprising key stakeholders and chaired by 

MHCLG, to receive reports from the new regulator on the development of local 
audit.  

 
4. The governance arrangements within local authorities be reviewed by local 

councils with the purpose of:  
 

• an annual report being submitted to Full Council by the external auditor;   
• consideration being given to the appointment of at least one independent 

member, suitably qualified, to the Audit Committee; and   
• formalising the facility for the CEO, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) to meet with the Key Audit Partner at least annually.  
 
5. All auditors engaged in local audit be provided with the requisite skills and training 

to audit a local authority irrespective of seniority.  
 
6. The current fee structure for local audit be revised to ensure that adequate 

resources are deployed to meet the full extent of local audit requirements.  
 
7. That quality be consistent with the highest standards of audit within the revised fee 

structure.  In cases where there are serious or persistent breaches of expected 
quality standards, OLAR has the scope to apply proportionate sanctions.  

  
8. Statute be revised so that audit firms with the requisite capacity, skills and 

experience are not excluded from bidding for local audit work.  
  
9. External Audit recognises that Internal Audit work can be a key support in 

appropriate circumstances where consistent with the Code of Audit Practice.  
 
10. The deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts be revisited with a 

view to extending it to 30 September from 31 July each year.  
 

Page 89



11. The revised deadline for publication of audited local authority accounts be 
considered in consultation with NHSI(E) and DHSC, given that audit firms use the 
same auditors on both Local Government and Health final accounts work.  
  

12. The external auditor be required to present an Annual Audit Report to the first Full 
Council meeting after 30 September each year, irrespective of whether the 
accounts have been certified; OLAR to decide the framework for this report.  
  

13. The changes implemented in the 2020 Audit Code of Practice are endorsed; 
OLAR to undertake a post implementation review to assess whether these 
changes have led to more effective external audit consideration of financial 
resilience and value for money matters.  
  

Smaller Authorities Audit Regulation  
 

14. SAAA considers whether the current level of external audit work commissioned for 
Parish Councils, Parish Meetings and Internal Drainage Boards (IDBs) and Other 
Smaller Authorities is proportionate to the nature and size of such organisations.  
 

15. SAAA and OLAR examine the current arrangements for increasing audit activities 
and fees if a body’s turnover exceeds £6.5m.  
 

16. SAAA reviews the current arrangements, with auditors, for managing the resource 
implications for persistent and vexatious complaints against Parish Councils.  
 

Financial Resilience of local authorities  
 

17. MHCLG reviews its current framework for seeking assurance that financial 
sustainability in each local authority in England is maintained.  
 

18. Key concerns relating to service and financial viability be shared between Local 
Auditors and Inspectorates including Ofsted, Care Quality Commission and 
HMICFRS prior to completion of the external auditor’s Annual Report.  
 

Transparency of Financial Reporting  
 

19. A standardised statement of service information and costs be prepared by each 
authority and be compared with the budget agreed to support the council 
tax/precept/levy and presented alongside the statutory accounts.   

 
20. The standardised statement should be subject to external audit.  

  
21. The optimum means of communicating such information to council 

taxpayers/service users be considered by each local authority to ensure access for 
all sections of the communities.  
  

22. CIPFA/LASAAC be required to review the statutory accounts, in the light of the 
new requirement to prepare the standardised statement, to determine whether 
there is scope to simplify the presentation of local authority accounts by removing 
disclosures that may no longer be considered to be necessary.   
 

23. JPAG be required to review the Annual Governance and Accountability Return 
(AGAR) prepared by smaller authorities to see if it can be made more transparent 
to readers.  In doing so the following principles should be considered:  

 

Page 90



• Whether “Section 2 – the Accounting Statements” should be moved to the first 
page of the AGAR so that it is more prominent to readers;   

• Whether budgetary information along with the variance between outturn and 
budget should be included in the Accounting Statements; and  

• Whether the explanation of variances provided by the authority to the auditor 
should be disclosed in the AGAR as part of the Accounting Statements. 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Richard Baker  
Executive Member: Councillor Duncan Bell  
All Wards  
 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITEE 28 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 
 

Part I 

REVIEW OF CORPORATE ANT-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY AND 
ASSOCIATED POLICIES  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The councils current anti-fraud and corruption policies and framework are due for 
renewal. To ensure consistency and coherent framework these policies have all 
been reviewed together. These policies are: 

 Anti-fraud and corruption 

 Anti-bribery 

 Anti-money Laundering 

 Preventing Tax Evasion 

1.2 As the reviews were more fundamental in approach, policies have not been 
presented with tracked changes. Current policies can be found on the council’s 
website for reference: 

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/policies 

1.3 The formal approval of the policies will be undertaken by Standards Committee 
on 30 November 2020. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Audit Committee note and provide comments as appropriate on the suite of 
proposed policies. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The council’s current anti-fraud and corruption policies are out of date and due a 
review. The Herts Shared Internal Fraud Service was commissioned to 
undertake a review of these policies and provide guidance on requirements. 

3.2 The policies have been updated to be more streamlined and coherent, improving 
consistency in approach between policies. An example o this is the use of a 
single email account for reporting the different areas of fraud and corruption. 

3.3 These polices reflect the latest guidance and best practice including two 
publications issued in early 2020. (Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 
Strategy 2020 (CIFAS) and A Guide to Understanding to Total Impact of Fraud 
2020 (International Public Sector Fraud Forum) ).  

Page 93

Agenda Item 11

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/policies


 
3.4 In particular, the CIFAS strategy seeks to improve the ways in which councils can 

come together to tackle fraud, and the proposed policies provide the scope and 
framework to do so. 

3.5 The policies will be presented to Standards Committee on 30 November 2020. 
They are presented to Audit Committee as an opportunity to comment and feed 
into the proposed polices.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 There is a suite of legislation that the council must comply with in relation to fraud 
and corruption. The relevant legislation is listed on the front page of each of the 
policies.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no direct impactions arising from the implementation of these policies. 
However, the policies provide a continued framework for the council to tackle 
fraud and corruption to prevent financial losses or recover losses where a fraud 
is identified.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Failure to have robust policies and processes in place for the prevention and 
management of fraud and corruption could expose the council to significant 
financial losses and reputational damage.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 In some instances, money laundering, fraud and corruption can be linked to 
wider criminal and terrorist activity. Having these policies help reduce exposure 
for the council being linked to such activities. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

Not applicable 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Not applicable 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

Not applicable 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Not applicable  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The communication and training plan on the policies will be developed for 
members and employees after the policies are approved.  

Page 94



13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority “Our 
Council”. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

 
14.1 An EqIA was completed on 17 September 2020 and no negative impact was 

identified on any of the protected groups under equalities legislation. 

 
Name of author Richard Baker 
Title Head of Resources 
Date 17 September 2020 
 
 
 

Appendices 

  Appendix A - Anti-fraud and corruption 
  Appendix B - Anti-bribery 

Appendix C - Anti-money Laundering 
Appendix D - Preventing Tax Evasion 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 
Version 1.0 

 
Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy 
 

Scope: 
This policy applies to all employees, councillors, contractors, 
partners, suppliers, consultants, residents and service users of the 
council.   

Effective Date: October 2020 

  
Review Date: October 2021 (or sooner if there are changes to legislation) 

  
Approval: TBC 

  
Author: Head of Resources  

  
Policy Owned by: Section 151 Officer  

 
Statute: 

 
Fraud Act 2006  
Bribery Act 2010 
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002  
Money Laundering Regulations 2017 (as amended) 
Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013  
Local Government Act 1972 
Housing Act 1985 and 1988 
Theft Act 1968  
Forgery and Counterfeiting Act 1981  
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)  
Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996  
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) 
 

National Standards and 
Guidance 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy 2020 (CIFAS) 
Code of Practice: Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
(CIPFA) 
A Guide to Understanding to Total Impact of Fraud 2020 
(International Public Sector Fraud Forum)  
UK Anti-corruption Strategy 2017-2022 (Home Office) 
Counter Fraud Standards and Profession (Cabinet Office) 
New Approaches in Tackling Tenancy Fraud (Chartered Institute of 
Housing) 

 
Related Policies 

 
See Appendix B 

Page 97



 

                                        

 

 

1 Scope 

1.1 This policy outlines The Council’s  attitude to fraud and corruption and the approach to 
be taken when fraud or corruption is suspected. It applies to all employees, 
councillors, contractors, partners, suppliers, consultants, volunteers, residents and 
service users of the council.     

1.2 The policy applies to all Council’s activities, including its work with strategic partners, 
third parties, suppliers and others. In the case of partnership working, the council will 
seek to promote the adoption of this policy by its partners.     

2 Policy Statement 

2.1 The Council will not tolerate fraudulent or corrupt acts and will take firm action 
against those who defraud the authority, who are corrupt or engage in financial 
malpractice.  

2.2 The Council will fulfil the responsibility to reduce fraud and protect our resources by a 
strategic approach consistent with that outlined in the Fighting Fraud and Corruption 
Locally Strategy 2020 and CIPFA’s Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 

2.3 The Council’s employees and Members have a key role in maintaining this culture. The 
Council has implemented effective whistleblowing arrangements and employees and 
Members are encouraged to raise any serious concerns about the Council’s work, 
including any reasonable belief that fraud or corruption is occurring.  

2.4 The desired culture is reinforced through the Council’s behavioural competencies 
which are embedded in policies and procedures, where values of openness and 
honesty are specifically mentioned.  

2.5 The Council aims to learn from any incidences of fraud or corruption and where there 
have been breakdowns in systems, procedures or governance arrangements, these 
will be reviewed and will be controls put in place to prevent a reoccurrence. 

2.6 We will Work with our partners and other investigative bodies to strengthen and 
continuously improve our arrangements to prevent fraud and corruption. 

3 Key Principles  

3.1 The Council is committed to the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption, 
whether from within or outside the organisation and accordingly the aims of this 
document are to: 

 To raise awareness of fraud and provide a consistent framework for managers 
and Members, which enables effective deterrence, prevention, detection and 
investigation of fraud and corruption; 

 
 Explain the roles and responsibilities of employees, Members and others with 

regard to fraud and corruption (Appendix A); 
 

Page 98



 

                                        

 

 

 Create and promote an anti-fraud culture of openness and honesty; 
 

 Create an environment that enables the reporting of any genuine suspicions of 
fraudulent activity. However, we will not tolerate malicious or vexatious 
allegations or those motivated by personal gain and, if proven, we may take 
disciplinary or legal action; 

 
 Assist the Council’s Section 151 Officer under the Local Government Act 1972 and 

the Head of Law & Administration in fulfilment of the role as the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer; and 

 
 Protect the Council’s resources; 

3.2 The strategy is based upon four key themes: Govern, Acknowledge, Prevent and 
Pursue (Appendix B). It adheres to the CIFAS publication “Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Locally Strategy 2020” which was published in March 2020.  

4 Types and Impact of Fraud 

4.1  Fraud detrimentally affects the Council , its ability to meet its objectives and impacts 
on its residents. It can:  

 Undermine the standards of public service that the council is attempting to 
achieve; 

 Reduce the level of resources and services available for residents; and 
 Result in major consequences which reduce public confidence in the Council. 
 

4.2 A list of types of fraud that could be faced by the Council are contained within 
Appendix D. This list is not exhaustive but provides context on the impact fraud and 
corruption can have on the organisation and its ability to deliver its objectives.   

5 Definitions of Commonly Used Terms 

Fraud  

5.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines fraud as: 

 “Any intentional false representation, including failure to declare information or 
abuse of position that is carried out to make gain, cause loss or expose another to the 
risk of loss” 

5.2 As a crime ‘Fraud’ is defined by the Fraud Act 2006 as:  

 Fraud by false representation  
 Fraud by failing to disclose  
 Fraud by abuse of position  

 

Page 99



 

                                        

 

 

5.3 In addition, the Fraud Act deals with offences relating to the possession of articles for 
use in fraud, making or supplying articles for use in frauds, participation by a sole 
trader in fraudulent business, and obtaining services dishonestly, either personally or 
for another. 

Bribery  

5.4 The Bribery Act 2010 came into force in the UK on 1 July 2011. It amends and reforms 
UK criminal law and provides a modern legal framework to combat bribery in the UK 
and internationally. Staff need to be aware of their obligations under this Act, which 
sets out the criminality of accepting and giving bribes. This applies to both staff and 
the Council corporately. 

5.5 The Bribery Act creates the following offences: 

 Active bribery: promising or giving a financial or other advantage; 
 Passive bribery: agreeing to receive or accepting a financial or other advantage;  
 Bribery of foreign public officials; and 
 The failure of commercial organisations to prevent bribery by an associated 

person (corporate offence). 

Page 100



 

                                        

 

 

5.6 The penalty under the Bribery Act is an unlimited fine and/or imprisonment up to a 
maximum of 10 years. These responsibilities are set out within the Council’s Anti-
Bribery Policy.                   

Corruption 

5.7 Corruption is the deliberate misuse of your position for direct or indirect personal 
gain. Corruption includes offering, giving, requesting or accepting a bribe or reward, 
which influences your actions or the actions of someone else.  

5.8 The Bribery Act 2010 makes it possible for Senior Officers to be convicted where they 
are deemed to have given their consent or tacit approval in giving or receiving a bribe. 

5.9 The Act also creates the Corporate Offence of “Failing to prevent bribery on behalf of 
a commercial organisation” (corporate liability).  To protect itself against the 
corporate offence, the Act also requires organisations to have “adequate procedures 
in place to prevent bribery”. This policy, the Member and Employee codes of conduct 
and the Whistleblowing Procedure are designed to meet that requirement.  

Money Laundering 

5.10 The Council recognises its responsibilities under the Money Laundering Regulations 
2017 (as amended) and the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. Money Laundering is the 
process by which criminals attempt to ‘recycle’ the proceeds of their criminal activities 
in order to conceal its origin and ownership whilst retaining use of the funds. 

5.11 The burden of identifying and reporting acts of money laundering rests within the 
Council. Any service that receives money from an external person or body is 
potentially vulnerable to a money laundering operation. 

5.12 The burden of identifying and reporting acts of money laundering rests within the 
Council. Any service that receives money from an external person or body is 
potentially vulnerable to a money laundering operation. 

 

Page 101



 

                                        

 

 

5.13 The need for vigilance is vital and any suspicion concerning the appropriateness of a 
transaction should be reported and advice sought from the Money Laundering 
Reporting Officer. 

5.14 Responsibilities and reporting arrangements are set out within the Council’s Anti-
Money Laundering Policy. 

6 Management of Fraud and Corruption 

6.1 As with any risk faced by the council, it is the responsibility of managers to ensure that 
any fraud risk is adequately considered when preparing risk assessments in support of 
achieving strategic priorities, business plans, project and programme objectives and 
outcomes.  

6.2 In making this assessment it is important to consider the risk of fraud occurring rather 
than any actual incidences of fraud having occurred in the past. Once the fraud risk 
has been evaluated, appropriate action should be taken to mitigate those risks on an 
ongoing basis. 

6.3 Any changes in operations or the business environment must also be assessed to 
ensure any impacts, which might increase or otherwise change the risk of fraud, 
bribery and corruption, are properly taken into account. 

6.4 Good corporate governance procedures are a strong safeguard against fraud and 
corruption. Adequate supervision, recruitment and selection, scrutiny and healthy 
scepticism must not be seen as distrust but simply as good management practice 
shaping attitudes and creating an environment opposed to fraudulent activity. 

6.5 Whilst all stakeholders in scope have a part to play in reducing the risk fraud, elected 
Members, Directors and Management are ideally positioned to influence the ethical 
tone of the organisation and play a crucial role in fostering a culture of high ethical 
standards and integrity. 

6.6 The Council adopts the four key themes of Govern, Acknowledge, Prevent and Pursue. 
The approach to each of these headings is set out in Appendix B.  

6.7 A fraud response plan is contained within Appendix C. This is used in the event of a 
fraud or a suspected fraud.  

6.8 The council will provide a counter fraud provision which: 

 Ensures that the resources dedicated are sufficient and those involved are trained 
to deliver a professional counter fraud service to the highest standards; 

 Proactively deters, prevents and detects fraud, bribery and corruption ; 
 Investigates suspected or detected fraud, bribery and corruption; and 
 Enables the council to apply appropriate sanctions and recover all losses through 

court action or by invoicing an individual. 
 

Page 102



 

                                        

 

 

6.9 In cases of confirmed fraud recommendations will be used to inform policy, systems, 
risk management and control improvements, thereby reducing the council’s exposure 
to fraudulent activity. 
 

6.10 The Council will share relevant information with third parties and participate in data 
matching exercises for the purposes of preventing, investigating and enforcing fraud 
and corruption. Data will only be shared where there is a clear legal basis for doing so 
in line with the councils Privacy Statement, Data Protection Policy and relevant 
legislation.  
 

6.11 On identification of a fraud or suspected fraud the Council will respond swiftly to: 
 
 Prevent further losses of funds or other assets where fraud has occurred;  
 Minimise the risk of inappropriate action or disclosure taking place which would 

compromise an investigation; 
 Ensure there is a clear understanding over who will lead any investigation and to 

ensure managers, HR, Internal Audit are involved as appropriate; 
 Establish and secure evidence necessary and ensure containment of any 

information for disciplinary, civil and/or criminal action; 
 Maximise recovery of losses; 
 Ensure appropriate and timely action is taken against those who are suspected of 

fraud; 
 Identify the perpetrators and take appropriate action with any disciplinary, civil 

and/or criminal action; and 
 Minimise any adverse publicity for Welwyn and Hatfield Borough Council 

7 Monitoring 

7.1 Fraud cases will be monitored to ensure the correct application of the policies and 
procedures. 
 

7.2 We will report on fraud information as required by the Transparency Act 2015. 

8 Version History 

Version no. 1.0 Date effective: October 2020 

Full / partial review? Full 

Brief summary of changes: Fundamental review of policy 

Staff consultation (teams): 

Housing Operations 
Legal 
Governance 
Client Services 
Procurement 
Human Resources 
Trade Unions 

Resident consultation: N/A  

Approved By Cabinet / Council: TBC 

Page 103



 

                                        

 

 

Author: Richard Baker, Head of Resources  

Appendix A – Roles and Responsibilities 

Stakeholder Responsibilities 

Chief Executive 

 
Accountable for the effectiveness of the council’s arrangements 
for countering fraud and corruption. 
 

Head of Law & 
Administration  
 
(Monitoring Officer) 

 
Statutory responsibility to ensure that the council operates within 
the law.  
 
Overall responsibility for the Members Code of Conduct and the 
maintenance and operation of the Whistleblowing Procedure  
 

 
 
Section 151 Officer 
 

 
To ensure the council has adopted and implemented an 
appropriate Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy/Strategy . 
 
To ensure that the council has an adequately resourced and 
effective Internal Audit service to support “counter fraud” 
activity. 

Audit Committee 

 
To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the arrangements 
in place for combating fraud and corruption. 
 

Members 

 
To comply with the Members Code of Conduct and related 
council policies and procedures.  
 
To be aware of the possibility of fraud, corruption, bribery and 
theft, and to report any genuine concerns accordingly. 
 

External Audit 

 
Statutory duty to ensure that the Council has adequate 
arrangements in place for the prevention and detection of fraud, 
corruption, bribery and theft. 
 

Directors, Service 
Heads, Service 
Managers 

 
To promote staff awareness and ensure that all suspected or 
reported irregularities are immediately reported or referred as 
per the council’s whistleblowing procedure (whistleblowing).  
 
To ensure that there are mechanisms in place within their service 
areas to assess the risk of fraud, corruption, bribery and theft and 

Page 104



 

                                        

 

 

to reduce these risks by implementing strong internal controls. 

Appendix A (continued) – Roles and Responsibilities 

Stakeholder Responsibilities 

Staff 

 
To comply with council policies and procedures. 
 
To be aware of the possibility of fraud, corruption and bribery, 
and to report any genuine concerns to management or via the 
Whistleblowing procedure. 
 

 
Public, Service Users, 
Partners, Suppliers, 
Contractors and 
Consultants 
 

To report any genuine concerns / suspicions in accordance with 
the council’s reporting procedure  

 
 

Page 105



 

                                        

 

 

Appendix B – Governing & Acknowledging, Preventing and Pursuing Fraud 

G
o

ve
rn

 

Executive Support  

 
Our Senior Management Team will set the tone for a zero 
tolerance of fraud and corruption and will ensure that an anti-
fraud culture is embedded across the Council and the services 
it delivers. 
 

Robust 
Arrangements 

 
The Council will adopt and apply a variety of policies and 
procedures that seek to reduce the risk of fraud and corruption 
and encourage staff to report fraud where they see it. These 
will be regularly reviewed and updated as appropriate by the 
responsible officers. These include: 
 
 Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy 
 Whistleblowing Policy 
 Preventing Tax Evasion Policy 
 Anti-money Laundering Policy 
 Anti-bribery Policy 
 Tenancy Fraud Policy 
 Corporate Enforcement Policy 
 RIPA Policy 
 The Councils Constitution (including financial regulations, 

member code of conduct and procurement standing 
orders) 

 Employee Code of Conduct 
 

 

A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
ge

 

Committing 
Support 

 
The council’s commitment to tackling the threat of fraud is 
clear. We have whistleblowing and fraud reporting procedures 
and support those who come forward to report suspected 
fraud. All reports will be treated seriously and acted upon. We 
will not, however, tolerate malicious or vexatious allegations. 
 

Assessing Risks 

 
We will continuously assess those areas most vulnerable to the 
risk of fraud as part of our risk management arrangements and 
internal audit service. These risk assessments will inform our 
internal controls and counter fraud priorities.  
 

Robust Response 

 
We will continually look to strengthen measures to prevent 
fraud.  We will respond positively, taking appropriate action, 
where fraud is reported or suspected (Appendix C).  We will 
review all incidences of fraud to ensure that any weaknesses in 
systems or processes that allowed the fraud to occur as 
removed. 

Page 106



 

                                        

 

 

Appendix B (Cont.) – Governing & Acknowledging, Preventing and Pursuing Fraud 

 

P
re

ve
n

t 

Better use of 
information 
technology 

 
We will make use of data and analytical software to prevent and 
detect fraudulent activity.  
 
We will look for opportunities to share data and fraud 
intelligence to increase our capability to uncover potential and 
actual fraud. 
 

Anti-Fraud culture 

 
We will promote and develop a strong counter fraud culture, 
raise awareness, provide information on all aspects of our 
counter fraud work. This will include publicising the results of all 
proactive work, fraud investigations and any recovery of losses 
due to fraud. 
 

 

P
u

rs
u

e 

Fraud Recovery 

 
We will enforce and aim to recover any funds lost through the act 
of fraud. This is an important part of our strategy and will be 
rigorously pursued, where possible. 
 

Punishing 
Fraudsters 

 
We will apply realistic and effective sanctions for individuals or 
organisations where an investigation reveals fraudulent activity. 
This may include legal action, criminal and/or disciplinary action, 
where appropriate. 
 

Enforcement 

 
Appropriately trained staff or partners will investigate any fraud 
detected through the: planned proactive work; cases of suspected 
fraud referred from internal or external stakeholders; or, cases 
received via the whistleblowing procedure. 
 
We will also work with relevant internal and external 
partners/external agencies/organisations. 
 

 

 

 

Page 107



 

                                        

 

 

Appendix C – Fraud Response Plan 

1 Identification / Notification 

1.1 In the event of a fraud being discovered or suspected, the matter should be reported 
to the Head of Resources who will decide what further action is appropriate. Details 
should be emailed to antifraud@welhat.gov.uk 

1.2 Tenancy or Benefit Fraud can also be reported online www.welhat.gov.uk/report  

1.3 The Council relies on its employees, its agencies and the public to help prevent and 
detect fraud and corruption. Often employees are the first to realise there is 
something seriously wrong internally, as they are in positions to be able to spot any 
possible cases of fraud or corruption at an early stage. 

1.4 Council employees and Members must report any concerns they may have regarding 
fraud, bribery and corruption, whether it relates to dishonest behaviours by council 
employees, Members or by others. 

1.5 The action taken when a suspected case of fraud, bribery, or corruption is first found 
might be vital to the success of any investigation that follows, so it is important that 
employees’ actions are in line with the information given in this document. Members, 
service users, suppliers, partner organisations and members of the public are 
encouraged to report concerns about fraud and corruption. 

1.6 Whilst you can remain anonymous, it does help if your details are provided as 
concerns expressed anonymously are often much more difficult to investigate. For 
example, we may need to contact you to obtain further information or verify the 
information supplied.  

2 Investigation Process 

2.1 Any suspicion of fraud or corruption will be treated seriously and will be investigated 
in statutory provisions and local protocols to ensure any actions are carried out both 
fairly and lawfully. 

2.2 Suspected fraud and corruption will be investigated in an independent, open-minded 
and professional manner with the aim of protecting the interests of both the Council 
and the suspected individual(s). 

2.3 Where necessary the Council will work in co-operation with other organisations such 
as the Police, Department for Work and Pensions, Home Office, Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs, UK Borders Agency, NHS Counter Fraud Authority and other 
Local Authorities. 

2.4 If sufficient evidence is established, the case will be reviewed to decide on the 
appropriate course of action to be taken. The Council’s corporate enforcement policy 
provide further guidance of what appropriate action will be taken against the persons 
concerned. 

 

Page 108

mailto:antifraud@welhat.gov.uk
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/report


 

                                        

 

 

Appendix C (continued)– Fraud Response Plan 

3 Confidentiality 

3.1 Details of any investigation are strictly confidential and will not be discussed with 
anyone other than the relevant management representatives. 

3.2 If the media becomes aware of an investigation and attempts to contact employees or 
Members, no disclosure of the alleged fraud and investigation can be given. All 
matters relating to statements to the media will be dealt with through the Council’s 
communications team. 

Page 109



 

                                        

 

 

Appendix D – Examples of Fraud Areas 

The main areas of fraud that were reported in Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally 2017-
2022 continue to feature as significant risks. However, there are also new fraud types 
emerging, and some of these are more prevalent in other parts of the country. Examples of 
fraud risk relevant to the Council to provide context around potential impacts include: 

Blue Badge – Use of counterfeit/altered badges, use when disabled person is not in the 
vehicle, use of a deceased person’s Blue Badge, badges issued to institutions being misused 
by employees. 

Grants – Work not carried out, funds diverted, ineligibility not declared. 

Identity fraud – False identity / fictitious persons applying for services / payments. 

Internal fraud – Diverting council monies to a personal account; accepting bribes; stealing 
cash; misallocating social housing for personal gain; working elsewhere while claiming to 
be off sick; false overtime claims; selling council property for personal gain;  

Payroll – False employees, overtime claims, expenses. 

Council Tax – False claims for discounts or exemptions to reduce liability. 

Housing Benefit – False claims regarding income, capital, rent liability or family makeup to 
increase entitlement. 

Business Rates – Deliberate withholding of information or relevant facts to evade or reduce 
liability. 

Housing/ Tenancy Fraud – providing false information to obtain social housing, sub-letting 
or parting with occupation, false succession applications and Right to Buy supported by 
money laundering. 

Procurement – Tendering issues, split contracts, double invoicing. 

Commissioning of services, including joint commissioning, and third sector 
partnerships – conflicts of interest, collusion. 

Concessionary travel schemes – Use of concession by ineligible person, including 
Freedom Passes. 

Cyber dependent crime and cyber enabled fraud – Enables a range of fraud types 
resulting in diversion of funds, creation of false applications for services and payments. 

Disabled Facility Grants – Fraudulent applications for adaptions to homes aimed at the 
disabled. 

Immigration, including sham marriages – False entitlement to services and payments. 

Insurance Fraud – False claims including slips and trips and claims for damages. 

Local Enterprise Partnerships – Voluntary partnerships between local authorities and 
businesses. Procurement fraud, grant fraud. 

New Responsibilities – Areas that have transferred to local authority responsibility e.g. 
Public Health grants, contracts. 

Money laundering – Exposure to suspect transactions. 

Page 110



  

 

 

 
Version 1.0 

 
Anti-Bribery Policy 
 

Scope: 
This policy applies to all employees, councillors, contractors, 
partners, suppliers, consultants, residents and service users 
of the council.   

Effective Date: October 2020 

  
Review Date: October 2021 (or sooner if there are changes to legislation) 

  
Approval (Committee and 
Date): 

TBC 

  
Author: Head of Resources  

  
Policy Owned by:  Section 151 Officer 

 
Statute: 

 
Bribery Act 2010 
 

National Standards and 
Guidance 

Tackling Tax Evasion: Government Guidance for the 
corporate offences of failure to prevent the criminal 
facilitation of tax evasion (HMRC) 
 

Related Policies Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy 
Gifts and Hospitality 
Anti-money Laundering Policy 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Codes of Conduct for Employees and Members 
Contract Procedure Rules  

 

Page 111



 

                                        

 

 

1 Scope 

1.1 This policy outlines the council’s approach to bribery. It applies to all employees, 
councillors, contractors, partners, suppliers, consultants, volunteers, residents and 
service users of the council.  

1.2 The policy applies to all council’s activities, including its work with strategic partners, 
third parties, suppliers and others. In the case of partnership working, the council will 
seek to promote the adoption of this policy by its partners.     

2 Background 

2.1 The Bribery Act 2010 (‘the Bribery Act’) aims to promote anti-bribery practices 
amongst businesses. An organisation will commit a criminal offence under the Bribery 
Act if it fails to prevent bribery that is intended to obtain or retain business, or an 
advantage in the conduct of business for the organisation.  

2.2 An individual can also be guilty of an offence under the Bribery Act. 

2.3 There are four key offences under the Act  

 Section 1 - Bribing another person 
 Section 2  -Taking a bribe 
 Section 6 - Bribing a foreign public official 
 Section 7 - Failing to prevent bribery. 

2.4 Before the Bribery Act came into force organisations were only likely to be guilty of a 
bribery offence if senior management were involved.  The Bribery Act however applies 
to all staff in the organisation, and now an organisation may be guilty of bribery if only 
the individual offender knew of the bribery. 

2.5 An organisation will have a defence to the corporate offence if it can demonstrate 
that it had adequate procedures in place to prevent bribery by, or of, persons 
associated with the organisation. 

2.6 An individual guilty of an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 is liable: 

 On conviction in a magistrate’s court - to imprisonment for a maximum term of 
12 months, or to a fine not exceeding £5,000 or both 

 On conviction in a crown court - to imprisonment for a maximum term of 10 
years or to an unlimited fine or both 

 
2.7 Organisations are also liable for these fines, and if guilty of an offence under section 7, 

are liable to an unlimited fine. 

3 Definition of Bribery 

3.1 Bribery is an inducement or reward offered, promised, or provided, to gain personal, 
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage. 

 

Page 112



 

                                        

 

 

4 Key Principles  

4.1 The objective of the policy is to provide a coherent and consistent approach to all 
employees and any person who performs services for and on behalf of Welwyn  
Hatfield Borough Council (the Council), including contractors,  subcontractors and 
volunteers on ensuring compliance with the Bribery Act. 

4.2 It will enable employees, members, contractors and volunteers to understand their 
responsibilities and allow them to take the necessary action such as reporting any 
potential breaches of the policy.   

4.3 The policy will form part of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Framework.   

4.4 The Council is committed to preventing bribery and will not tolerate it in any of its 
activities. 

5 Policy Statement 

5.1 The Council is committed to countering bribery and corruption in all forms and will not 
tolerate it in any of its activities. 

5.2 The Council does not, and will not, pay bribes or offer improper inducement to 
anyone for any purpose.  Equally, the Council does not, and will not, accept any bribes 
or improper inducements or engage indirectly in or otherwise encourage bribery. 

5.3 All staff and those working or performing any service on or on behalf of the Council 
will neither accept nor give bribes.  

5.4 It is considered unacceptable to: 

 Give, promise to give, or offer payment, gifts or hospitality with the expectation, 
or hope, that a business advantage will be received, or to reward a business 
advantage already given; 
 

 Give, promise to give, or offer payment, gifts or hospitality to a government 
official, agent or representative to “facilitate” or expedite a routine procedure; 
 

 Accept payment from a third party that is offered with the expectation that it will 
obtain business advantage for them, whether known or suspected; 
 

 Accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if it is offered or provided with an 
expectation that a business advantage will be provided by the Council in return, 
whether known or suspected; 
 

 Retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery 
offence or who has raised concerns under this policy; or 
 

 Engage in activity in breach of this policy. 
 
 

Page 113



 

                                        

 

 

6 Responsibilities 

6.1 Prevention detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption are the 
responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its control. 
 

6.2 All staff, including third parties working or performing any service on or behalf of the 
Council, are to avoid activity that breaches this policy and must: 

 
 Ensure that they read, understand and comply with the policy; 
 Raise concerns as soon as possible if they suspect that this policy has been 

breached; 
 Act honestly with integrity at all times to safeguard the Council’s resources for 

which they are responsible; and 
 Comply with the law (both in spirit and in the letter). 

 
6.3 This policy is not meant to change the requirements of the Council’s Gifts and 

Hospitality Policy as set out in the Code of Conduct for Officers. 

7 Identification and Notification Regarding Bribery 

7.1 Concerns regarding bribery must be raised with the Councils Section 151 Officer as 
soon as practicably possible if there is a suspicion that this policy has been breached. 
They can be contacted using antifraud@welhat.gov.uk or at Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 

8 Sanctions 

8.1 Staff who breach this policy may face disciplinary action, which could result in dismissal 
for misconduct or gross misconduct. 
 

8.2 Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 contracting authorities shall exclude a 
bidder from participation in a procurement where they have established that supplier 
has been convicted of certain offences, including bribery.  This is tested during all 
relevant procurements and the relevant action taken. 

9 Version History 

Version no. 1.0 Date effective: October 2020 

Full / partial review? Full 

Brief summary of changes: Fundamental review of policy 

Staff consultation (teams): 

Legal 
Governance 
Client Services 
Procurement 
Human Resources 

Finance/Payroll 
Trade Unions 

Resident consultation: N/A  

Page 114

mailto:antifraud@welhat.gov.uk


 

                                        

 

 

Approved By Cabinet / Council: TBC 

Author: Richard Baker, Head of Resources  

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 
Version 1.0 

 
Anti-money Laundering Policy 
 

Scope: 
This policy applies to all employees, councillors, contractors, 
partners, suppliers, consultants, residents and service users 
of the council.   

Effective Date: October 2020 

  
Review Date: October 2021 (or sooner if there are changes to legislation) 

  
Approval (Committee and 
Date): 

TBC 

  
Author: Head of Resources  

  
Policy Owned by: Section 151 Officer 

 
Statute: 
 

 
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 
Money Laundering Regulation 2017 (as amended) 
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
Terrorism Act 2000 
 

National Standards and 
Guidance 

Combating Financial Crime: Practical Advice for the Public 
Sector 2020 (CIPFA) 
 

Related Policies Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy 
Gifts and Hospitality 
Anti-money Laundering Policy 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Codes of Conduct for Employees and Members 
Contract Procedure Rules 

 

Page 117



 

                                        

 

 

1 Scope 

1.1 This policy outlines the council’s approach to bribery. It applies to all employees, 
councillors, contractors, partners, suppliers, consultants, volunteers, residents and 
service users of the council.  

1.2 The policy applies to all council’s activities, including its work with strategic partners, 
third parties, suppliers and others. In the case of partnership working, the council will 
seek to promote the adoption of this policy by its partners.     

2 Background 

2.1 Local authorities are not directly covered by the requirements of The Proceeds of 
Crime Act 2002 and the Money Laundering Regulations 2017 (as amended). However 
guidance from CIPFA indicates that they should comply with the underlying spirit of 
the legislation and regulations. 

2.2 The council is committed to the highest possible standards of conduct and has 
therefore put in place appropriate and proportionate anti-money laundering 
safeguards and reporting arrangements. 

2.3 This policy appoints Anti-Money Laundering Reporting Officer to comply with 
legislation and to oversee the reporting of suspicious activity and money laundering to 
the National Crime Agency.  

3  Definition of Money Laundering 

3.1 Money laundering describes offences involving the integration of the proceeds of 
crime, or terrorist funds, into the mainstream economy. Such offences are defined 
under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 as the following ‘prohibited acts’:  

 Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing criminal property 
from the UK. (s327);  

 Becoming involved in an arrangement which an individual knows or suspects 
facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by or on 
behalf of another person. (s328); 

 Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property (s329); 
 Doing something that might prejudice an investigation e.g. falsifying a document 

(s333); 
 Failure to disclose one of the offences listed in a) to c) above, where there are 

reasonable grounds for knowledge or suspicion (s330-332); and 
 Tipping off a person(s) who is or is suspected of being involved in money 

laundering in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of or prejudice an 
investigation. (s333). 

Page 118



 

                                        

 

 

3.2 Provided the Council does not undertake activities regulated under the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000, the offences of ‘failure to disclose’ and ‘tipping off’ do 
not apply. However, the Council and its employees and Members remain subject to 
the remainder of the offences and the full provisions of the Terrorism Act 2000.  

 

3.3 The Terrorism Act 2000 made it an offence for money laundering to become 
concerned in an arrangement relating to the retention or control of property likely to 
be used for the purposes of terrorism or resulting from acts of terrorism. 

3.4 Although the term ‘money laundering’ is generally used to describe the activities of 
organised crime, for most people it will involve a suspicion that someone they know, 
or know of, is benefiting financially from dishonest activities.  

3.5 Potentially very heavy penalties (unlimited fines and imprisonment up to fourteen 
years) can be handed down to those who are convicted of one of the offences.  

3.6 Bribery is an inducement or reward offered, promised, or provided, to gain personal, 
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage. 

4 Key Principles  

4.1 The main requirements of the legislation are:  

 To appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO); 
 Maintain client identification procedures in certain circumstances;  
 Implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money 

laundering; and  
 Maintain record keeping procedures.  

Its aim is to enable employees and Members to respond to a concern they have in the course 
of their dealings for the Council, and also places a duty upon them to report suspicious 
activity and money laundering to the MLRO.  

Page 119



 

                                        

 

 

4.2 Individuals who have a concern relating to a matter outside of work should contact 
the Police. The objective of the policy is to provide a coherent and consistent 
approach to all employees and any person who performs services for and on behalf of 
Welwyn & Hatfield Borough Council (the Council), including contractors and 
subcontractors on ensuring compliance with the Bribery Act. 

4.3 It will enable employees, members, contractors and volunteers to understand their 
responsibilities and allow them to take the necessary action such as reporting any 
potential breaches of the policy.   

4.4 The policy will form part of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Framework.   

4.5 The Council is committed to preventing bribery and will not tolerate it in any of its 
activities. 

5 Policy Statement 

5.1 The Council is committed to countering bribery and corruption in all forms including 
money laundering and will not tolerate it in any of its activities. 

5.2 All staff and those working or performing any service on or on behalf of the council be 
aware of their responsibilities and familiar with legal requirements. Officers 
considered likely to be exposed to suspicious situations, will be made aware of these 
by their senior officer and provided with appropriate training. 

5.3 It is the duty of employees and members to report all suspicious transactions to the 
MLRO whether they have received training or not, using the reporting procedure.  

5.4 A limit is set on payments to the Council in the form of cash, and no payment to the 
Council will be accepted in cash if it exceeds £5,000. 

5.5 Where the Council is carrying out “relevant business” (accountancy, audit and certain 
legal services) and, as part of this: 

 forms an ongoing business relationship with a client; or 
 undertakes a one-off transaction involving payment by or to the client of €15,000 

(approximately £13,000) or more; or 
 undertakes a series of linked one-off transactions involving total payment by or to 

the client(s) of €15,000 or more; or 
 it is known or suspected that a one-off transaction (or a series of them) involves 

money laundering; then the Client Identification Procedure must be followed 
before any business is undertaken for that client. This requirement does not 
apply if a business relationship with the client existed before 1 March 2004. 

 

 
 

Page 120



 

                                        

 

 

6 Responsibilities 

6.1 Prevention detection and reporting of money laundering and other forms of 
corruption are the responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its 
control. 
 

6.2 All staff, including third parties working or performing any service on or behalf of the 
Council, are to avoid activity that breaches this policy and must: 

 
 Ensure that they read, understand and comply with the policy; 
 Raise concerns as soon as possible if they suspect that this policy has been 

breached; 
 Act honestly with integrity at all times to safeguard the Council’s resources for 

which they are responsible; and 
 Comply with the law (both in spirit and in the letter). 

7 Client Identification Procedures  

7.1 Although not a legal requirement, the Council has developed formal client 
identification procedures which must be followed when council land or property is 
being sold. These procedures require individuals and, if appropriate, companies to 
provide proof of identity and current address.  
 

7.2 If satisfactory evidence is not obtained at the outset of a matter, then the transaction 
must not be progressed and a disclosure report must be submitted to the Money 
Laundering Reporting Officer.  
 

7.3 All personal data collected must be kept in compliance with the councils Data 
Protection Policy and Procedures. 

8 Identification and Reporting of Money Laundering 

8.1 The Council has designated the Section 151 Officer as the Money Laundering Reporting 
Officer. In their absence the Deputy Section 151 Officer may deputise as MLRO.  
 

8.2 They can be contacted using antifraud@welhat.gov.uk or at Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

8.3 Where you know or suspect that money laundering activity is taking/has taken place, 
or become concerned that your involvement in a matter may amount to a prohibited 
act under the Act, you must disclose this as soon as practicable to the MLRO. 
 

8.4 The disclosure should be within “hours” of the information coming to your attention, 
not weeks or months later. Your disclosure should be made to the MLRO using the 
disclosure report (Appendix A), the report must include as much detail as possible 
including;  

 
 Full details of the people involved;  

Page 121

mailto:antifraud@welhat.gov.uk


 

                                        

 

 

 Full details of the nature of their/your involvement; 
 The types of money laundering activity involved;  
 The date(s) of such activities;  
 Whether the transactions have happened, are ongoing or are imminent;  
 Where they took place;  
 How they were undertaken;  
 The (likely) amount of money/assets involved; and  
 Why, exactly, you are suspicious.  

 
8.5 This should be provided along with any other available information to enable the 

MLRO to make a sound judgment as to whether there are reasonable grounds for 
knowledge or suspicion of money laundering, and to enable them to prepare their 
report to the National Crime Agency (NCA), where appropriate. You should also 
enclose copies of any relevant supporting documentation.  
 

8.6 If you are concerned that your involvement in the transaction would amount to a 
prohibited act under sections 327 – 329 of the Act, then your report must include all 
relevant details, as you will need consent from the NCA, via the MLRO, to take any 
further part in the transaction - this is the case even if the client gives instructions for 
the matter to proceed before such consent is given. You should therefore make it clear 
in the report if such consent is required and clarify whether there are any deadlines for 
giving such consent e.g. a completion date or legal deadline. 
 

8.7 Once you have reported the matter to the MLRO you must follow any directions the 
MLRO may give you. You must not make any further enquiries into the matter yourself, 
any necessary investigation will be undertaken by the NCA. Simply report your 
suspicions to the MLRO who will refer the matter on to the NCA if appropriate. All 
members of staff will be required to co-operate with the MLRO and the authorities 
during any subsequent money laundering investigation.  
 

8.8 Similarly, at no time and under no circumstances should you voice any suspicions to 
the person(s) whom you suspect of money laundering, even if the NCA has given 
consent to a particular transaction proceeding, without the specific consent of the 
MLRO; otherwise you may commit a criminal offence of “tipping off”.  
 

8.9 Do not, therefore, make any reference on a client file to a report having been made to 
the MLRO – should the client exercise their right to see the file, then such a note will 
obviously tip them off to the report having been made and may render you liable to 
prosecution. The MLRO will keep the appropriate records in a confidential manner.  
 

8.10 The employee must follow any subsequent directions of the MLRO or deputy and must 
not themselves make any further enquiries into the matter. 
 

8.11 The employee must not disclose or otherwise indicate their suspicions to the person 
suspected of money laundering. 
 

Page 122



 

                                        

 

 

9 Consideration of the report by the Money Laundering Reporting Officer  

9.1 Upon receipt of a disclosure report, the MLRO must note the date of receipt on their 
section of the report and acknowledge receipt of it. They should also advise you of the 
timescale within which they expect to respond to you.  
 

9.2 The MLRO will consider the report and any other available internal information they 
think relevant, for example:  

 
 reviewing other transaction patterns and volumes;  
 the length of any business relationship involved;  
 the number of any one-off transactions and linked one-off transactions; and  
 any identification evidence held.  

 
9.3 The MLRO will undertake such other reasonable inquiries they think appropriate in 

order to ensure that all available information is taken into account in deciding whether 
a report to the NCA is required (such enquiries being made in such a way as to avoid 
any appearance of tipping off those involved). The MLRO may also need to discuss the 
report with you.  
 

9.4 Once the MLRO has evaluated the disclosure report and any other relevant 
information, they must make a timely determination as to whether:  
 
 there is actual or suspected money laundering taking place; or  
 there are reasonable grounds to know or suspect that is the case; and  
 whether they need to seek consent from the NCA for a particular transaction to 

proceed.  
 

9.5 Where the MLRO does so conclude, then they must disclose the matter as soon as 
practicable to the NCA on their standard report form and in the prescribed manner, 
unless they have a reasonable excuse for non-disclosure to the NCA (for example, if 
you are a lawyer and you wish to claim legal professional privilege for not disclosing 
the information). 
 

9.6 Where the MLRO suspects money laundering but has a reasonable excuse for non-
disclosure, then they must note the report accordingly; they can then immediately give 
their consent for any ongoing or imminent transactions to proceed.  
 

9.7 In cases where legal professional privilege may apply, the MLRO must liaise with the 
Council’s Legal Department to decide whether there is a reasonable excuse for not 
reporting the matter to the NCA.  
 

9.8 Where consent is required from the NCA for a transaction to proceed, then the 
transaction(s) in question must not be undertaken or completed until the NCA has 
specifically given consent, or there is deemed consent through the expiration of the 
relevant time limits without objection from the NCA.  

Page 123



 

                                        

 

 

 
9.9 Where the MLRO concludes that there are no reasonable grounds to suspect money 

laundering then they shall mark the report accordingly and give their consent for any 
ongoing or imminent transaction(s) to proceed.  
 

9.10 All disclosure reports referred to the MLRO and reports made by them to the NCA 
must be retained by the MLRO in a confidential file kept for that purpose, for a 
minimum of five years.  
 

9.11 The MLRO commits a criminal offence if they know or suspect, or have reasonable 
grounds to do so, through a disclosure being made to them, that another person is 
engaged in money laundering and they does not disclose this as soon as practicable to 
the NCA.  
 

10 Sanctions 

10.1 Staff who breach this policy may face disciplinary action, which could result in dismissal 
for misconduct or gross misconduct. 
 

10.2 Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 contracting authorities shall exclude a 
supplier from participation in a procurement where they have established that 
supplier has been convicted of certain offences, including bribery and corruption 

11 Version History 

Version no. 1.0 Date effective: October 2020 

Full / partial review? Full 

Brief summary of changes: Fundamental review of policy 

Staff consultation (teams): 

Legal 
Governance 
Client Services 
Procurement 
Human Resources 

Finance/Payroll 
Trade Unions 

Resident consultation: N/A  

Approved By Cabinet / Council: TBC 

Author: Richard Baker, Head of Resources  

 

Page 124



 

                                        

 

 

Appendix A - Report to MLRO Template 
 
To:  The Money Laundering Reporting Officer antifraud@welhat.gov.uk  
            
From Officer Reporting Suspected Activity: 
 

Name:  

Position:  

Business Unit:  

Email address:  

Telephone numbers:  

 
Do not discuss the content of this report with anyone, especially the person 
you believe to be involved in the suspected money laundering activity you 

have described. To do so may constitute a tipping off offence. 
 

Details of suspected offence: 

Name(s) and address(es) of person(s) involved: (Please also include date of birth, 
nationality, national insurance numbers- if possible)  
(If a company please include details of nature of business, type of organisation, 
registered office address, company registration number, VAT registration number):  

 
 

Nature, value and timing of activity involved: (Please include full details e.g. what, 
when, where, how.) 

 
 

Nature of suspicions regarding such activity: 

 
 

Has any investigation been undertaken (as far as you are aware), If yes, please 
include details below:   Yes / No  

 
 

Have you discussed your suspicions with anyone else, if yes, please specify below, 
explaining why such discussion was necessary:  Yes / No  

 
 

Have you consulted any supervisory body guidance re money laundering? (e.g. the 
Law Society) If yes, please specify below: Yes / No  

 
 

Do you feel you have reasonable grounds for not disclosing the matter to the FCA? 
(e.g. are you a lawyer and wish to claim legal professional privilege?) If yes, please 
set out full details below: Yes / No  

 
 

Page 125

mailto:antifraud@welhat.gov.uk


 

                                        

 

 

Are you involved in a transaction which might be a prohibited act under the 
Proceeds of Crime Act and which requires appropriate consent from NCA, If yes, 
please enclose details below: Yes / No 

 
 

Please detail below any other information you feel is relevant:  
 

 
 

 

FOR COMPLETION BY THE MONEY LAUNDERING REPORTING OFFICER 

Date report received:   

Date receipt of report acknowledged:  

 

Consideration of Disclosure - Action plan 

 Are there reasonable grounds for suspecting money-laundering activity?  

 
 

If there are reasonable grounds for suspicion, will a report be made to NCA? Yes / 
No  

 
 

If yes, please confirm date of report to NCA: 

 
 

Details of liaison with NCA regarding the report: 

 
 

Is consent required from the NCA for any ongoing or imminent transactions that 
would otherwise be prohibited acts.  If yes, please confirm full details; Yes / No 

 
 

 

Date consent received from NCA:  

Date receipt of report acknowledged:  

Date consent given by you to employee:  

Date consent given by you to employee for any prohibited act 
transactions to proceed: 

 

 

If there are reasonable grounds to suspect money laundering, but you do not 
intend to report the matter to the NCA, please set out below the reason(s) for non-
disclosure:  
 

 
 

Page 126



 

                                        

 

 

Other relevant information:  
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… Dated:…………………………………  
 

RETENTION PERIOD FIVE YEARS 

 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 
Version 1.0 

 
Preventing Tax Evasion Policy 
 

Scope: 
This policy applies to all employees, councillors, contractors, 
partners, suppliers, consultants, residents and service users 
of the council.   

Effective Date: October 2020 

  
Review Date: October 2021 (or sooner if there are changes to legislation) 

  
Approval (Committee and 
Date): 

TBC 

  
Author: Head of Resources  

  
Policy Owned by: Section 151 Officer  

 
Statute: 

 
Criminal Finance Act 2017 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)  
Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996  
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) 
 

National Standards and 
Guidance 

Tackling Tax Evasion: Government Guidance for the 
corporate offences of failure to prevent the criminal 
facilitation of tax evasion (HMRC) 
 

Related Policies Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy 
Gifts and Hospitality 
IR35 Policy and Guidance 
Anti-money Laundering Policy 
Whistleblowing Policy 
Codes of Conduct for Employees and Members 
Contract Procedure Rules  

Anti-bribery Policy 

Page 129



 

                                        

 

 

1 Scope 

1.1 This policy outlines the council’s approach to tax evasion. It applies to all employees, 
councillors, contractors, partners, suppliers, consultants, volunteers, residents and 
service users of the council.  

1.2 The policy applies to all council’s activities, including its work with strategic partners, 
third parties, suppliers and others. In the case of partnership working, the council will 
seek to promote the adoption of this policy by its partners.     

2 Background 

2.1 The Criminal Finance Act 2017, which became law in the summer of 2017, sets out 
how those organisations categorised as ‘relevant bodies’ under the Act will be 
considered criminally liable where they fail to prevent those who act for, or on their 
behalf from criminally facilitating tax evasion.  

2.2 The Act introduced new offences that will be committed where a relevant body fails to 
prevent an associated person criminally facilitating the evasion of a tax, and this will be 
the case whether the tax evaded is owed in the UK or in a foreign country.  

2.3 Organisations, including Councils, could be liable to severe penalties if they fail to 
implement adequate procedures to prevent tax evasion. 

2.4 On 1 September 2018 Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) issued guidance for 
relevant bodies formulated around the following six guiding principles:  

 Risk assessment; 
 Proportionality of risk-based prevention procedures;  
 Top level commitment; 
 Due diligence;  
 Communication (including training); and  
 Monitoring and reviewing. 

3 Definition of Tax Evasion 

3.1 It is an offence to dishonestly “take steps with a view to” or “be knowingly concerned 
in” the evasion of the tax. For these offences to be committed it is not necessary that 
any tax actually be successfully evaded. 

3.2 There are three stages that apply to both the domestic and foreign tax evasion 
facilitation offences. 

 Stage One: the criminal tax evasion by a taxpayer (either an individual or a legal 
entity) under existing law;  

 Stage Two: the criminal facilitation of the tax evasion by an “associated person” 
of the relevant body acting in that capacity;  

 Stage Three: the relevant body failed to prevent its representative from 
committing the criminal facilitation act. 

Page 130



 

                                        

 

 

4 Key Principles  

4.1 The objective of the policy is to provide a coherent and consistent approach to all 
employees and any person who performs services for and on behalf of Welwyn & 
Hatfield Borough Council (the Council), including contractors and subcontractors, on 
the prevention of tax evasion by those parties engaged in any form of activity with the 
Council.   

4.2 It will enable employees, members, contractors and volunteers to understand their 
responsibilities and allow them to take the necessary action such as reporting any 
potential breaches of the policy.   

4.3 The policy will form part of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Framework.   

4.4 The Council is committed to preventing tax evasion and will not tolerate it in any of its 
activities. 

5 Policy Statement 

5.1 The Council understands it role in the prevention of tax evasion and takes its 
responsibilities seriously. 

5.2 The Council will ensure it has adequate procedures in place to assess and prevent tax 
evasion.  

5.3 It is considered unacceptable knowingly or through collusion to: 

 enter false or misleading information in relation to the employment of an 
individual to facilitate the underpayment of income tax; 
 

 process invoice payments or raise debt to facilitate the underpayment of tax; 
 

 artificially document services supplied to the Authority as being outside the scope 
of VAT; 
 

 helping an overseas contractor avoid overseas tax on payments they make to the 
Authority; or 
 

 process a payment to an employee or contractor as an expense rather than 
another type of payment which would be subject to tax. 

 
5.4 The Council will ensure it adequately investigates and takes action on any suspicion of 

tax evasion.  

6 Procedures 

6.1 Whether procedures are adequate is for the courts to decide on a case by case basis.  
The procedures need to be applied proportionately based on the level of risk of tax 
evasion to the Council.   
 

Page 131



 

                                        

 

 

6.2 Adequate procedures cover: 
 

 Risk Assessment - The Council will assess the nature and extent of its exposure to 
being considered as having failed to prevent the act of tax evasion.   
 

 Top Level Commitment - The Corporate Management Team and Cabinet are 
committed to supporting proportionate measures to safeguard against tax 
evasion and that this is clearly communicated to all managers, staff and partners 
of the Council. 
 

 Due Diligence - That the Council can demonstrate it is confident that its business 
relationships are transparent and ethical. 
 

 Clear, Practical and Accessible Policies and Procedures - That the Council’s 
policies and procedures to prevent tax evasion are clear, practical, accessible and 
enforceable. 
 

 Effective Implementation - The Prevention of Tax Evasion policy and any related 
procedures are embedded throughout the Council.  This means that statements 
setting out its commitment to preventing tax evasion are embedded in the 
recruitment, retention, and operational policies and in training programmes. 
 

 Monitoring and Review - That the Council monitors and reviews its policies and 
procedures on a regular basis to ensure that they are current, up to date and fit 
for purpose. Fraud cases will be monitored to ensure the correct application of 
the policies and procedures. 

7 Identification and Notification Regarding Tax Evasion 

7.1 Prevention, detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption are the 
responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its control.  
 

7.2 Concerns must be raised with the Councils Section 151 Officer as soon as practicably 
possible if there is a suspicion that this policy has been breached using 
antifraud@welhat.gov.uk or at Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 

8 Sanctions 

8.1 Staff who breach this policy will be investigated and may face disciplinary action, which 
could result in dismissal for misconduct or gross misconduct. 
 

8.2 In line with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 the council will exclude a supplier 
from participation in a procurement where the supplier has been found guilty of 
breaching its obligations in relation to the payment of taxes and may exclude a 
supplier where the council has knowledge of breach short of a conviction. 
 

Page 132

mailto:antifraud@welhat.gov.uk


 

                                        

 

 

9 Version History 

Version no. 1.0 Date effective: October 2020 

Full / partial review? Full 

Brief summary of changes: Fundamental review of policy 

Staff consultation (teams): 

Legal 
Governance 
Client Services 
Procurement 
Human Resources 

Finance/Payroll 
Trade Unions 

Resident consultation: N/A  

Approved By Cabinet / Council: TBC 

Author: Richard Baker, Head of Resources  

 

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 RISK MANAGEMENT
	Risk Report -  Appendix A -  Strategic Risks July 2020
	Risk Report - Appendix B - Top Operational Risks July 2020

	8 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT
	9 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
	10 INDEPENDENT REVIEW INTO THE OVERSIGHT OF LOCAL AUDIT AND THE TRANSPARENCY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY FINANCIAL REPORTING ("REDMOND REVIEW")
	11 REVIEW OF CORPORATE ANT-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY AND ASSOCIATED POLICIES
	11 - Appendix A- Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy v1.0
	11 - Appendix B- Anti-bribery Policy v1.0
	11 - Appendix C- Anti-money Laundering Policy v1.0
	11 - Appendix D- Preventing Tax Evasion Policy v1.0


